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2024
2024
2023 2024
2017 11 86,931 13,162.22 101.35 15,345
2018 11 111,925 16,946.56 98.23 14,873
2019 11 179,810 27,225.03 106.75 16,163
2020 11 226,624 34,313.14 110.69 16,760
2021 11 244,726 37,053.96 110.63 16,750
2022 11 168,454 25,505.62 90.95 13,771
2023 11 200,750 30,395.56 91.38 13,836
2023 191,952 29,063.45 94.25 14,270
2023 195,190 29,553.72 93.22 14,114
2023 197,244 29,864.71 92.86 14,060
2023 197,632 29,923.46 92.14 13,951
2023 198,550 30,062.46 92.02 13,933
2023 193,277 29,264.07 89.40 13,536
2023 10 191,540 29,001.07 87.72 13,282
2023 11 200,750 30,395.56 91.38 13,836
2023 12 213,347 32,302.87 95.14 14,405
2024 213,509 32,327.40 95.36 14,438
2024 210,529 31,876.20 94.25 14,270
2024 211,461 32,017.31 94.98 14,381
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2016 11 16 2017 11 -10 167
2017 12 2018 11 -20 182
2018 12 2019 11 -20 182
2019 12 2020 11 -20 182
2020 12 2021 11 -20 182
2021 12 2022 11 -20 182
2022 12 2023 11 -20 182
2023 12 12 10 15

2024 12 10 15

2024 13 10 15

2024 12 .10 15

2023 2024 -20 182
(2016 11 16 2024 -70 1,317
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2017 12 2018 11 -1.89
2018 12 2019 11 9.90
2019 12 2020 11 4.81
2020 12 2021 11 1.03
2021 12 2022 11 -16.70
2022 12 2023 11 1.79

100x =

()

(2016 11 1620162016 12 ) -0.81
(2017 20172017 12 ) 3.70
2018 20182018 12 -0.58
2019 20192019 12 7.43
2020 20202020 12 6.20
2021 20212021 12 -0.65
2022 20222022 12 -16.28
2023 20232023 12 6.44
2024 20242024 0.15

100x +

2024

2016
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2023 11 30
2023 11 30 2022 11 30
USD USD
5 5 . $194,507,856 29,450,434 $161,869,074 24,508,596
2.1 5,977,454 905,046 4,065,217 615,515
2.10 3 1,196,639 181,183 474,223 71,802
2.4 - 2,800,000 423,948
22,415 3,394 13,505 2,045
201,704,364 30,540,058 169,222,019 25,621,906
8.2C 329,677 49,916 297,316 45,017
2.8
) 10 3 184,774 27,977 2,902,286 439,435
8.28 64,886 9,824 147,427 22,322
8.18 63,838 9,666 33,691 5,101
8.1E 62,515 9,465 19,333 2,927
8.1C 40,408 6,118 33,981 5,145
8.1A 35,278 5,341 22,172 3,357
8.2E 8,092 1,225 7,623 1,154
5,458 826 -

8.1D 797 121 599 91
630 95 630 95
796,353 120,576 3,465,058 524,644
$200,908,011 30,419,482 $165,756,961 25,097,261
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2023 11 30 1
2023 11 30 2022 11 30
USD UsD
®
2.11 $7,626,372 1,154,709  $7,615,642 1,153,084
2.11 249,525 37,781 37,137 5,623
(142,983) (21,649)  (3,923,896) (594,117)
2.11 7
2o 211 (2,544,607) (385,279) (39,950,000)  (6,048,830)
.

2.6 - 165 25
5,188,307 785,562  (36,220,952)  (5,484,214)

8.2A
8.2¢ 1,293,008 195,774 1,392,643 210,860
8.1C 468,481 70,933 504,581 76,399
8.28 374,785 56,746 403, 665 61,119
8.1A 112,436 17,024 121,099 18,336
8.18 77,435 11,724 85,792 12,990
8.1E 65,561 9,927 55,308 8,374
21,897 3,315 21,889 3,314
8.1D 21,137 3,200 22,582 3,419
8.2F 18,739 2,837 20,183 3,056
2,453,479 371,481 2,627,742 397,866
2,734,828 414,080  (38,848,694)  (5,882,081)
$2,734,828 414,080 $(38,848,694)  (5,882,081)

) FVTPL
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2023 11 30
UsD
2021 11 30 $244,776,878 37,061,667
3 19,644,117 2,974,316
2.8 (57,366,190) (8,685,815)
2.7 (2,449,150) (370,826)
(38,848,694) (5,882,081)
2022 11 30 $165,756,961 25,097,261
3 52,369,147 7,929,213
2.8 (17,510, 263) (2,651,229)
2.7 (2,442,662) (369,843)
2,734,828 414,080
2023 11 30 $200,908,011 30,419,482
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2023 11 30
2023 11 30 2022 11 30
UsD UsD

$2,734,828 414,080 $(38,848,694)  (5,882,081)
(36,326,372)  (5,500,176) (13,815,641)  (2,091,826)
1,000,000 151,410 48,300,000 7,313,103
- (165) (25)
142,983 21,649 3,923,896 594,117
2,544,607 385,279 39,950,000 6,048,830
2,800,000 423,948 (2,800,000) (423,948)
(8,910) (1,349) (11,428) (1,730)
48,807 7,390 (70,292) (10,643)
(27,064,057)  (4,097,769) 36,627,676 5,545,796
51,646,731 7,819,832 19,596,461 2,967,100
(20,227,775)  (3,062,687) (54,982,602)  (8,324,916)
(2,442,662) (369,843)  (2,449,150) (370,826)
28,976,294 4,387,301  (37,835,291)  (5,728,641)
1,912,237 289,532 (1,207,615) (182,845)
)1 4,065,217 615,515 5,272,832 798,359
$5,977,454 905,046  $4,065,217 615,515

2.1
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2023 11 30 1

2023 11 30 2022 11 30
usD UsD
$249,525 37,781 $37,137 5,623

$7,626,372 1,154,709 $7,615,642 1,153,084

€Y)
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2023 11 30 1
1.
2013 12 2 UBS

11 1l
2016 10 3

UBS
2016 11 16
2021 2014 1 22
2021
KY1-9005
One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman
Islands
CsC
2021 12 6 2022 11 CSC Intertrust Group

DS

76/242



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 11 30 1
1 A
A A
$
SF
1933
1940
Baa3 BBB-
& Baa3 BBB-
Bal
BB+
2023 11 30 2022 11 30 100.0%

87.5%
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2023 11 30 1
2 A
C
A
C
C
2163 12 1
Q) 300
(i)
1
1 25
1
1
1
2023 3 19  UBS Group AG ( UBS

FINMA
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2023 11 30 1
2023 6 12 UBS AG AG
2024 4 30
2.
IFRS IFRS
4
IFRS 10 IFRS 12 I1AS 27 2012
IFRS 9 3
FVTPL

FVOCI IFRS 9

FVTPL
FVTPL

)

i) SPPI)
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2023 11 30 1

) SPPI

iii)FVTPL

FVTPL

SPP1
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2023 11 30 1

ECL FVOCI
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2023 11 30 1
ECL
- FVTPL
- 12
2023 11 30
2022 12 1
2.1
3
2023 11 30 2022 11 30
2023 2022
$ 21,849  $ 9,400
5,955,605 4,055,817
$ 5,977,454  $ 4,065,217
2.2
A

FVTPL
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2023 11 30 1
2023 11 30 - 2023 11 30 -
$ 194,507,856 $ 231,790,089
2022 11 30 - 2022 11 30 -
$ 161,869,074 $ 196,606,700
2023 11 30 2022 11 30
B
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2023 11 30 1
D
E
F
NAV
(1) (i) (iii)

@iv)
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2023 11 30
7 00
10,000
2.3
2023 11 30 2022 11 30
2.4
2023 11 30
2.5
2.6

85/242



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 11 30 1
B

2.7

()

(i) (i)

(M (i)
1
2023 11 30 2022 11 30
2023 2022

A $ 2,442,662 $ 2,449,150

86/242



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 11 30 1

2.8

IAS 32

2023 11 30 2022
11 30
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2023 11 30 1

2.9

2.10

2.11 FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL

FVTPL

FVTPL

2.12
2063 12 2

2023 11 30 2022 11 30
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2023 11 30 1

IAS 12

2023 11 30 2022 11 30
2.13
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2023 11 30 1
3.
1
1
1 100
2 5
2023 11 30 1
1
A $ 200,908,011 2,198,447 $ 91.3863
2022 11 30 1
1
A $ 165,756,961 1,822,411 $ 90.9548
2023 11 30 2022 11 30 1

100%
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2023 11 30 1

%

1 2.00%
1 2 1.60%
2 3 1.20%
3 4 0.80%
4 5 0.40%
5

91/242



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 11 30 1
2023 11 30

A $52,369,147 $(17,510,263)
2022 11 30

A $19,644,117 $(57,366,190)
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2023 11 30 1
2023 11 30 2022 11 30 1
2022 11 30 2023 11 30
A 1,822,411 566,946 (190,910) 2,198,447
2021 11 30 2022 11 30
A 2,212,610 192,357 (582,556) 1,822,411
1
4.
5.

5.1
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2023 11 30 1

Q)

IMF
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2023 11 30 1
2022 11 30
2023 11 30
2023 11 30
%
JPY $ - $ - $ (5,458) $ (5,458) 0.0%
- - (5,458) (5,458) 0.0%
usb 5,977,454 194,507,856 428,159 200,913,469 100.0%
$ 5,977,454 $ 194,507,856 $ 422,701 $ 200,908,011 100.0%
2023 11 30
2023
JPY +/- 6.22% +/- $ 339
(i)
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2023 11 30 1
2023 11 30 2022 11 30 50
1
29,778 20,279

(i)
2023 11 30 2022 11 30 1%

1,945,079 1,618,601

1%

2023 11 30

11% 2022 11%

2023 11 30

87% 2022 88%

2022 11 30
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2023 11 30 1
B
2023 11 30 2022 11 30
2023 11 30
2022 11 30
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2023 11 30
2023 11 30
%
*

Aaa 9.5%
Aal 10.3%
Aa2 27.8%
Aa3 18.1%
Al 16.9%
A2 8.4%
A3 4.6%
Baal 0.9%
Baa2 2.3%

98.8%
* Moody*s Investor Service

2022 11 30
%
*

Aaa 3.1%
Aal 8.0%
Aa2 27 .4%
Aa3 18.4%
Al 21.6%
A2 9.6%
A3 5.2%
Baal 2.5%
Baa2 2.8%

98.6%

Moody*s Investor Service
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2023 11 30 1
C
2023 11 30 1 13
$ 329,677 $ - 3 329,677
184,774 - 184,774
64,886 - 64,886
63,838 - 63,838
62,515 - 62,515
40,408 - 40,408
35,278 - 35,278
8,092 - 8,092
5,458 - 5,458
797 - 797
630 630

$ 796,353 $ - $ 796,353

99/242



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 11 30 1
2022 11 30 1 1
$ 2,902,286 $ $ 2,902,286
297,316 297,316
147,427 147,427
33,981 33,981
33,691 33,691
22,172 22,172
19,333 19,333
7,623 7,623
630 630
599 599
$ 3,465,058 $ $ 3,465,058
2023 11 30 2022 11 30
2023 11 30 2022 11 30
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5.2
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2023 11 30 1
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2023 11 30 1

2023 11 30 2022 11 30

2023 11 30 2022 11 30

2163 12 1
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2023 11 30 1

5.3
IFRS 13
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2023 11 30 1
3
2023 11 30
2023 11 30
2
$ 194,507,856 $ - 3 194,507,856
$ 194,507,856 $ - 3 194,507,856
2022 11 30
2022 11 30
2
$ 161,869,074 $ - 3 161,869,074
$ 161,869,074 $ -3 161,869,074
2023 11 30 2022 11 30 2 3
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2023 11 30 1
2 2
NAV
2
2023 11 30 2022 11 30
(i) 2023 11 30 2022 11 30
2
5.4
2023 11 30 2022 11 30 28,757,477,179
194,543,886 25,823,285,335 185,086,621 2023 11 30
28,438,094,136
28,464,284,868 26,190,732
2022 11 30 25,568,902,731
25,486,839,018 82,063,713
2023 11

30 2022 11 30
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2023 11 30 1
2
6.
100%
2023 11 30 2022 11 30
7.
2023 11 30 2022 11 30
$ (142,983) $ (3,923,731)
- (165)

$ (142,983) $ (3,923,896)
$ (2,544,607) $ (39,950,000)
$ (2,544,607) $ (39,950,000)
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2023 11 30 1
8.
8.1

A

5 0.06% 5 0.05% 10
0.04%
3,750 2023 11 30 2022 11 30 1
2023 11 30 2022 11 30
B
2023 11 30 2022 11 30 2023
11 30 2022 11 30
C
0.25%
2023 11 30 2022 11 30
2023 11 30 2022 11 30
D
0.01% 1
10 2023 11 30 2022 11 30
2023 11 30 2022 11 30
E
2023 11 30 2022 11 30

2023 11 30 2022 11 30
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2023 11 30 1
8.2
A
10,000
2023 11 30 2022 11 30 2023 11 30
2022 11 30
B
0.20%
2023 11 30 2022 11 30 1
2023 11 30 2022 11 30
0.32%
C
0.12%
0.57%
2023 11 30 2022 11 30 2023 11

30 2022 11 30
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2023 11 30 1
(D
(i1)
Gii)
25
365
D
5,000
E
0.01%
2023 11 30 2022 11 30

2023 11 30 2022 11 30
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2023 11 30 1
9.
10%
2023 11 30 2022 11 30
10.
2024 2 1 UBS
2024 2 28
] UBS 11 2024 3
1
2024 4 30
2023 12 1 2024 4 30 9,641,192 7,760,005

1,114,083
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2023 12 29
( )

( \25,493,201,138) \ 28,370,885,366
( \400,345) 400,345
64,017,380

352,355,176
28,787,658,267

89,125,271

23,377,539
5,284,921
5,060,257
4,427,360
2,042,689

924,154
56,936
130,299,127

\ 28,657,359,140
\ 28,657,359,140

23,162,741
\ 1,237
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(

/C

/(
/C

/C

)

/(

/(

/(

/(

/(

113/242

\ 1,112,844,281
1,112,844,281

91,225,567
14,253,998
7,609,391
5,559,430
2,850,794
1,944,726
764,724
124,208,630

988,635,651

841,386,812
(270,254,068)
571,132,744

2,120,695,310
(241,586,925)
1,879,108,385

2,450,241,129

\ 3,438,876,780
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2023 12 29
( )
C )
C ) \ 988,635,651
/C ) 571,132,744
/C ) 1,879,108,385
C ) 3,438,876,780
(1,195,816,005)
/( ) 2,124 ,403,677
/( ) 4,367,464,452
24,289,894,688
\ 28,657,359,140
*
442,311 18,923,192
41,790 3,330,470
15,002 909,079
(499,103) -
(442,311) 4,239,549
- 23,162,741
\ 300,000,000 \  3,923,768,000
104,905,585 1,090,910, 420
(3,295,180,328) -
/ \  (2,890,274,743) \  5,014,678,420
* 2023 11 1
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2023 12 29
( )
/ 7,060 \ 1,119
/) 199 42
/( ) (609) 127
C ) (410) 169
(250) (51)
/ 6,400  \ 1,237
ok (6.03)%™ 15.30%
/ -\ 28,657,359,140
0.37% 0.44%
/C ) 2.86% 3.49%
* /
> 2023 11 1 1
*kk 1

Fokkk
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2023 12 29
(98.7%)
(10.9%)
(10.9%)
Advocate Health & Hospitals Corp.
usb 1,000,000 3.83% 8/15/2028(2) \ 137,119,538
American University
1,000,000 3.12% 10/1/2027(2) 133,809,088
Association of American Medical Colleges
1,000,000 3.02% 10/1/2035 117,236,892
Baptist Health Obligated Group
1,000,000 3.57% 12/1/2034(2) 120,655,190
Baylor Scott & White Holdings
360,000 3.10% 11/15/2025(2) 48,939,692
Boston Medical Center Corp.
1,000,000 3.91% 7/1/2028 131,766,638
CommonSpirit Health
1,398,000 4.19% 10/1/2049(2) 166,738,429
Jackson Laboratory
2,000,000 3.64% 7/1/2025 275,731,303
Kaiser Foundation Hospitals
2,900,000 3.15% 5/1/2027(2) 391,212,366
LBJ Infrastructure Group LLC
4,000,000 3.80% 12/31/2057(2) , (0) 384,589,908
Leland Stanford Junior University
2,000,000 3.65% 5/1/2048(2) 244,822,999
Low Income Investment Fund
400,000 3.39% 7/1/2026(2) 53,198,078
Massachusetts Institute of Technology
2,184,000 2.99% 7/1/2050(2) 231,682,606
Providence Heal th System
1,000,000 5.39% 10/1/2030 140,750,796
Providence St Joseph Health Obligated Group
1,000,000 2.53% 10/1/2029(2) 123,494,647
University of Southern California
2,000,000 4.98% 10/1/2053(2) 292,139,081
UPMC
1,000,000 5.38% 5/15/2043(2) 142,243,900
2,884,772,829 3,136,131,151
2,884,772,829 3,136,131,151
(87.8%)
(87.8%)
Alabama Federal Aid Highway Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
500,000 2.65% 9/1/2037(2) 55,664,900
American Municipal Power, Inc., Revenue Bonds
35,000 7.20% 2/15/2029 5,486,606
370,000 7.73% 2/15/2033 61,579,614
Arizona Department of Transportation State Highway Fund Revenue, Revenue Bonds
730,000 3.17% 7/1/2038(2) 86,140,555
Bay Area Tol I Authority, Revenue Bonds
835,000 2.32% 4/1/2033(2) 96,751,045
CaliforniaEducational Facilities Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.11% 4/1/2028(2) 133,453,697
1,500,000 3.79% 4/1/2042(2) 166,781,335
California Infrastructure & Economic Development Bank, Revenue Bonds
1,155,000 2.54% 7/1/2031 140,236,891
1,250,000 2.72% 10/1/2040(2) 132,670,443
California State Public Works Board, Revenue Bonds
475,000 7.80% 3/1/2035 78,034,447
California State University, Revenue Bonds
2,375,000 2.80% 11/1/2041(2) 246,038,326
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2023 12 29
(98.7 %)
(87.8 %)
(87.8 %)
California Statewide Communities Development Authority, Revenue Bonds
usb 1,000,000 1.21% 2/1/2027 \ 127,796,549
750,000 1.81% 2/1/2030 90,690,739
Central Puget Sound Regional Transit Authority, Revenue Bonds
305,000 5.49% 11/1/2039 45,984,514
Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 2.27% 1/1/2030 244,387,849
565,000 3.29% 1/1/2042(2) 61,683,135
Chicago 0"Hare International Airport, Revenue Bonds
500,000 1.70% 1/1/2026 66,451,624
Chicago Transit Authority Sales & Transfer Tax Receipts Revenue, Revenue Bonds
378,416 6.90% 12/1/2040 60,935,418
City of Amarillo TX Hotel Occupancy Tax Revenue, Revenue Bonds
300,000 3.40% 8/15/2024 41,792,613
505,000 3.85% 8/15/2028(2) 68,582,078
250,000 4.05% 8/15/2031(2) 33,257,338
1,815,000 4.20% 8/15/2038(2) 229,460,188
City of Arlington TX Special Tax Revenue, Special Tax Bonds
300,000 3.60% 2/15/2025 41,595,217
220,000 3.67% 2/15/2026 30,329,868
310,000 3.77% 2/15/2027 42,639,432
City of Bridgeport CT, General Obligation Bonds
500,000 3.65% 9/15/2039(2) 57,711,582
City of Dearborn M1, General Obligation Bonds
1,000,000 4.33% 5/1/2032(2) 138,057,775
City of Downey CA, Revenue Bonds
450,000 1.75% 6/1/2029 54,420,477
550,000 1.85% 6/1/2030 64,914,854
825,000 1.95% 6/1/2031(2) 95,135,426
City of EI Cajon CA, Revenue Bonds
1,600,000 2.79% 4/1/2036(2) 174,119,205
City of Holland M1, General Obligation Bonds
900,000 4.14% 8/1/2032(2) 122,097,123
City of Houston TX Combined Uti lity System Revenue, Revenue Bonds
300,000 3.83% 5/15/2028 41,559,039
City of Houston TX, General Obligation Bonds
1,795,000 3.96% 3/1/2047 225,433,753
City of Jersey City NJ, General Obligation Bonds
350,000 3.76% 9/1/2033 45,968,976
City of Kansas City MO, Revenue Bonds
500,000 4.38% 10/1/2032(2) 68,567,617
City of Memphis TN, General Obligation Bonds
60,000 5.26% 7/1/2025 8,499,389
City of Monterey Park CA, Revenue Bonds
225,000 1.79% 6/1/2029 27,428,892
250,000 1.89% 6/1/2030 29,786,438
300,000 1.99% 6/1/2031 34,971,487
City of New Orleans LA, General Obligation Bonds
250,000 3.17% 12/1/2025 34,188,555
City of New York NY, General Obligation Bonds
750,000 2.47% 8/1/2037(2) 80,362,245
900,000 3.60% 8/1/2028(2) 122,512,907
1,000,000 5.26% 10/1/2052 147,909,173
1,000,000 5.85% 6/1/2040 149,596,718
City of Oklahoma City OK, General Obligation Bonds
1,280,000 3.50% 3/1/2039() 156,524,473
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(98.7%)
(87.8%)
(87.8%)
City of Phoenix Civic Improvement Corp., Revenue Bonds
Usb 1,500,000 2.56% 7/1/2040(2) \ 158,415,627
City of Rio Rancho NM Gross Receipts Tax Revenue, Revenue Bonds
375,000 1.93% 6/1/2031(2) 44,146,848
450,000 2.03% 6/1/2032(2) 51,986,096
City of Riverside CA, Revenue Bonds
925,000 3.00% 6/1/2025 126,804,220
1,000,000 3.86% 6/1/2045(2) 120,276,700
City of Springdale AR Sales & Use Tax Revenue, Revenue Bonds
1,850,000 5.10% 8/1/2030(2) 266,779,768
City of Tempe AZ, Certificate Participation
3,300,000 2.59% 7/1/2037(2) 350,032,315
City of Tucson AZ, Certificate Participation
120,000 6.30% 7/1/2025 17,123,426
City of Worcester MA, General Obligation Bonds
2,805,000 3.50% 1/15/2032(2) 367,221,972
City of Yuma AZ, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 1.95% 7/15/2029 123,617,367
Colorado Housing & Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
150,000 0.86% 11/1/2024 20,635,242
Commonweal th Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,155,000 3.66% 6/1/2038 144,170,009
2,000,000 3.86% 6/1/2038 256,771,185
1,705,000 5.20% 6/1/2026 239,521,962
Commonweal th of Massachusetts, General Obligation Bonds
1,965,000 2.51% 7/1/2041(2) 206,156,103
Commonweal th of Massachusetts, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 3.77% 7/15/2029 275,570,936
Connecticut State Health & Educational Facilities Authority, Revenue Bonds
500,000 3.36% 7/1/2028 66,011,674
Contra Costa County Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency, Tax Allocation
300,000 3.00% 8/1/2025 40,970,966
Cook County School District No 159 Matteson-Richton Park, General Obligation Bonds
1,615,000 2.94% 12/1/2033(2) 195,823,896
County of Cook IL, General Obligation Bonds
525,000 6.23% 11/15/2034 79,059,309
230,000 6.31% 11/15/2031 34,625,152
955,000 6.36% 11/15/2033 146,145,880
County of Fresno CA, Revenue Bonds
1,200,000 0.00% 8/15/2025(C) 155,161,218
County of Jackson MI, General Obligation Bonds
1,000,000 3.53% 12/1/2028(2) 134,711,426
County of Miami-Dade FL Aviation Revenue, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 3.18% 10/1/2028 265,269,748
County of Miami-Dade FL Water & Sewer System Revenue, Revenue Bonds
1,245,000 2.50% 10/1/2027 164,325,967
County of Miami-Dade Seaport Department, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 6.22% 11/1/2055(2) 149,453,319
County of Tulare CA, Revenue Bonds
1,610,000 4.31% 6/1/2033(2) 213,040,621
Dallas Area Rapid Transit, Revenue Bonds
1,495,000 6.00% 12/1/2044 235,506,027
Dallas Fort Worth International Airport, Revenue Bonds
2,085,000 2.99% 11/1/2038 245,624,706
Florida Municipal Power Agency, Revenue Bonds
1,250,000 3.06% 10/1/2025 170,875,447

118/242



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 12 29
(98.7 %)
(87.8 %)
(87.8 %)
FoothilI-Eastern Transportation Corridor Agency, Revenue Bonds
usD 750,000 2.96% 1/15/2046(2) \ 76,125,643
1,750,000 3.92% 1/15/2053(2) 197,172,040
Gerald R Ford International Airport Authority, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 5.50% 1/1/2053(2) 293,648,210
Golden State Tobacco Securitization Corp., Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 2.53% 6/1/2028 127,359,305
Grand Parkway Transportation Corp., Revenue Bonds
700,000 3.01% 10/1/2039(2) 78,325,715
Ill1inois Housing Development Authority, Revenue Bonds
520,000 5.19% 4/1/2033(2) 72,821,363
Indiana Bond Bank, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.11% 8/1/2028(2) 134,182,559
JobsOhio Beverage System, Revenue Bonds
2,075,000 2.83% 1/1/2038 238,410,112
2,475,000 3.99% 1/1/2029 344,079,269
Kansas Development Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
100,000 3.64% 4/15/2024 14,036,195
40,000 4.39% 4/15/2030 5,595,055
165,000 4.73% 4/15/2037 22,923,172
Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 5.08% 8/15/2048 132,496,762
Kentucky Housing Corp., Revenue Bonds
485,000 3.21% 1/1/2025 67,087,437
340,000 3.31% 7/1/2025 46,739,786
Kentucky State Property & Building Commission, Revenue Bonds
250,000 6.57% 8/1/2029 36,878,984
La Quinta Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency, Tax Allocation
605,000 4.53% 9/1/2039(2) 78,983,411
Louisiana Local Government Environmental Facilities & Community Development Auth,
Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.39% 9/1/2034(2) 125,618,632
Massachusetts Educational Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
500,000 3.51% 7/1/2029 65,811,052
1,500,000 4.04% 7/1/2026 208,292,652
Metropolitan Government Nashville & Davidson County Sports Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.02 % 8/1/2040(2) 111,988,632
Metropolitan St Louis Sewer District, Revenue Bonds
750,000 3.16% 5/1/2038(2) 88,490,241
Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority Dulles Toll Road Revenue, Revenue Bonds
500,000 8.00% 10/1/2047 94,714,943
Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago, General Obligation Bonds
410,000 5.72% 12/1/2038 61,652,848
Michigan Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
3,500,000 2.67% 9/1/2049(2) , (d) 462,481,140
Michigan State Building Authority, Revenue Bonds
4,000,000 2.71% 10/15/2040(2) 429,273,269
Minneapolis-St Paul Metropolitan Airports Commission, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 3.90% 1/1/2030(2) 274,202,327
Municipal Electric Authority of Georgia, Revenue Bonds
49,000 6.66% 4/1/2057 7,850,302
Muskegon County Bui lding Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.86% 11/1/2032(2) 132,885,008
Nebraska Public Power District, Revenue Bonds
250,000 3.05% 1/1/2028 33,236,920
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New Hampshire Business Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
Usb 1,000,000 4.02% 9/1/2055(2) \ 113,370,322
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
20,000 2.97% 7/1/2024 2,774,862
70,000 3.24% 1/1/2024 9,867,200
New Jersey Economic Development Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,425,000 0.00% due 2/15/2025(¢) 189,781,793
750,000 3.47% 6/15/2027 102,276,700
1,000,000 4.98% 3/1/2027 142,082,295
New Jersey Higher Education Student Assistance Authority, Revenue Bonds
170,000 3.25% 12/1/2030(2) 23,091,853
New Jersey Institute of Technology, Revenue Bonds
500,000 4.18% 7/1/2037(2) 65,837,504
New Jersey Turnpike Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.73% 1/1/2036 127,175,804
1,000,000 7.41% 1/1/2040 175,632,566
New York City Housing Development Corp., Revenue Bonds
2,910,000 2.10% 5/1/2031(2) 337,407,494
400,000 3.23% 2/1/2027(2) 53,835,359
400,000 3.28% 8/1/2027(2) 53,535,238
300,000 3.33% 2/1/2028(2) 39,935,316
580,000 3.38% 8/1/2028(2) 76,698,679
New York City Industrial Development Agency, Revenue Bonds
1,250,000 2.34% 1/1/2035 134,256,859
New York City Transitional Finance Authority Future Tax Secured Revenue, Revenue
Bonds
2,700,000 1.71% 11/1/2028 335,830,537
1,050,000 3.04% 8/1/2027 141,685,868
655,000 5.51% 8/1/2037 95,144,090
New York State Dormitory Authority, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 2.22% 7/1/2035 230,533,370
300,000 3.27% 7/1/2026 40,384,845
New York State Thruway Authority, Revenue Bonds
425,000 2.90% 1/1/2035 52,148,710
New York State Urban Development Corp., Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 3.37% 3/15/2030(2) 263,736,724
North Carolina Turnpike Authority, Revenue Bonds
75,000 5.32% 1/1/2031 10,828,721
North Texas Tol lway Authority, Revenue Bonds
500,000 3.08% 1/1/2042(2) 55,233,999
Ohio Turnpike & Infrastructure Commission, Revenue Bonds
1,500,000 3.22% 2/15/2048(2) 159,074,622
Oklahoma Municipal Power Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,870,000 2.43% 1/1/2034 213,138,097
Oregon School Boards Association, General Obligation Bonds
200,000 5.68% 6/30/2028 28,963,663
Palmdale Elementary School District, Special Tax Bonds
650,000 3.25% 8/1/2027 87,318,580
1,080,000 3.50% 8/1/2028 144,994,774
Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.20% 11/15/2027 132,903,347
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, Revenue Bonds
250,000 2.93 % 12/1/2025 34,103,232
1,000,000 3.09 % 12/1/2038(3) 113,638,752
Philadelphia Authority for Industrial Development, Revenue Bonds
35,000 1.65 % 11/1/2024 4,746,652
320,000 6.35 % 4/15/2028 47,301,290
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Port Authority of New York & New Jersey, Revenue Bonds
usD 540,000 3.14 % 2/15/2051(2) \ 57,280,139
1,500,000 4.43 % 10/15/2034(2) 206,433,397
2,000,000 5.07 % 7/15/2053 291,933,347
Port of Seattle WA, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 2.15% 8/1/2031 119,123,478
Redevelopment Authority of the City of Philadelphia, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 5.44 % 9/1/2037(2) 288,633,135
Regents of the University of CaliforniaMedical Center Pooled Revenue, Revenue Bonds
560,000 6.46 % 5/15/2029 83,204,927
Regional Transportation District, Certificate Participation
225,000 7.67 % 6/1/2040 38,736,156
Rhode Island Housing & Mortgage Finance Corp., Revenue Bonds
125,000 1.99 % 10/1/2028 15,355,527
Rhode Island Turnpike & Bridge Authority, Revenue Bonds
635,000 3.16 % 12/1/2033(2) 75,516,583
1,375,000 3.46 % 12/1/2039(2) 155,424,238
Riverside County Infrastructure Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
250,000 3.19 % 11/1/2041(2) 27,554,952
Sales Tax Securitization Corp., Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 2.98 % 1/1/2025 138,140,504
2,000,000 3.59 % 1/1/2043 237,180,367
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,100,000 3.10 % 7/1/2043(2) 117,110,075
San Diego County Regional Transportation Commission, Revenue Bonds
1,120,000 3.20 % 4/1/2039(2) 131,040,189
San Jose Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency, Tax Allocation
775,000 3.38 8/1/2034(3) 98,143,269
South Carolina Public Service Authority, Revenue Bon
1,000,000 6.45 % 1/1/2050 160,836,544
South Central Connecticut Regional Water Authority, Revenue Bonds
2,800,000 3.04 % 8/1/2033(2) 345,035,618
State of California, General Obligation Bonds
500,000 5.13 % 3/1/2038(2) 71,225,178
1,000,000 5.88 % 10/1/2041(2) 148,086,501
2,250,000 7.50 % 4/1/2034 384,876,674
2,750,000 7.55% 4/1/2039 489,437,520
1,000,000 7.60% 11/1/2040 179,475,600
State of Connecticut, General Obligation Bonds
2,000,000 4.61% 5/15/2029 285,133,042
State of Hawaii, General Obligation Bonds
2,000,000 5.75% 10/1/2034(2) 304,318,488
State of Illinois, General Obligation Bonds
3,655,000 5.10% due 6/1/2033 509,768,040
650,000 5.11% due 5/1/2027 92,322,926
State of Washington, General Obligation Bonds
4,000,000 5.14% due 8/1/2040 580,227,107
State of Wisconsin, Revenue Bonds
4,255,000 3.95% due 5/1/2036(2) 557,964,505
Texas A&M University, Revenue Bonds
500,000 2.26% 5/15/2025 68,173,852
Texas Natural Gas Securitization Finance Corp., Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 5.10% 4/1/2035 143,657,678
Texas Private Activity Bond Surface Transportation Corp., Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.92% 12/31/2049 114,129,420
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Triborough Bridge & Tunnel Authority, Revenue Bonds
Usb 1,000,000 2.59% 5/15/2036(2) \ 110,178,974
Tri-County Metropolitan Transportation District of Oregon, Revenue Bonds
2,400,000 2.86% 9/1/2041() 262,873,271
Tulsa Airports Improvement Trust, Revenue Bonds
500,000 3.45% 6/1/2026 68,302,394
University of California, Revenue Bonds
500,000 1.32% 5/15/2027(2) 63,820,979
2,000,000 5.77% 5/15/2043 304,866,258
University of Nebraska Facilities Corp., Revenue Bonds
200,000 2.37% 10/1/2029 25,537,371
University of Virginia, Revenue Bonds
544,000 6.20% 9/1/2039 86,974,523
Utah Housing Corp., Revenue Bonds
220,000 3.38% 1/1/2039() 30,101,623
Vermont Student Assistance Corp., Revenue Bonds
30,000 3.50% 6/15/2029(2) 4,146,196
Virginia Housing Development Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,500,000 3.33% 4/1/2040(2) 168,558,551
VirginiaResources Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 2.75% 11/1/2034(2) 118,186,376
West Covina Public Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
250,000 2.98% 8/1/2029 32,133,686
1,000,000 3.74% 8/1/2038(2) 120,690,798
( \22,522,182,428)) 25,148,508,334
(¢ \22,522,182,428) 25,148,508,334
( \25,406,955,257) 28,284,639,485
(0.3%)
(0.3%)
(0.3%)
Royal Bank of Canada
usb 601,837 4.58% 01/02/2024 84,834,945
(¢ \84,834,945) 84,834,945
(0.0%)
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp.
EUR 70 2.71% 01/02/2024 10,929
( \10,929) 10,929
(0.0%)™
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Ltd.
JPY 1,400,007 (0.34)% 01/04/2024 1,400,007
( \1,400,007) 1,400,007
( \86,245,881) 86,245,881
( \ 86,245,881) 86,245,881
( \25,493,201,138) 99.0% \ 28,370,885,366
1.0% 286,473,774
100.0% \ 28,657,359,140
0.05
@
(b) 1447 -1933 144 A
©
(D)
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(O]
0.2% \ 55,664,900
2.6% 735,329,290
0.9% 266,779,768
18.5% 5,313,104,335
0.2% 59,371,398
2.6% 753,891,916
0.3% 94,714,943
2.6 749,924,481
0.0%* 7,850,302
1.1% 304,318,488
5.9% 1,694,927,327
0.5% 134,182,559
0.2% 42,554,422
1.0% 283,202,969
0.6% 159,807,187
3.9% 1,123,052,715
6.0% 1,713,153,951
1.0% 274,202,327
0.5% 157,057,858
0.2% 58,774,291
0.4% 126,012,384
3.0% 871,847,491
0.3% 96,132,944
10.5% 3,021,339,989
0.0% 10,828,721
2.8% 808,630,223
1.5% 437,964,964
1.0% 291,836,934
4.4% 1,261,789,564
0.9% 246,296,348
0.6% 160,836,544
0.4% 120,488,021
7.0% 2,001,371,907
0.1% 30,101,623
0.0% 4,146,196
1.3% 373,719,450
2.6% 745,335,099
2.0% 557,964,505
87.8% \ 25,148,508,334
0.05
2023 12 29 ( -0.1%)
/
usD SSB 102,398  01/18/2024  JPY  (15,080,527) \ -\ (680,618) \ (680,618)
usD SSB 90,020  01/18/2024  JPY  (13,289,271) - (629,983) (629,983)
usD SSB 71,274 01/18/2024  JPY  (10,576,072) - (553,051) (553,051)
JPY SSB 1,590,953,246  01/18/2024  USD  (10,876,926) 61,361,663 - 61,361,663
JPY SSB 14,394,000  01/18/2024  USD (98,408) 555,164 - 555,164
JPY SSB 14,675,679  01/18/2024  USD (99,291) 712,730 - 712,730
JPY SSB 9,634,046  01/18/2024  USD (65,236) 460,047 - 460,047
USD WSTP 10,719,089  01/18/2024  JPY (1,593,834,132) - (86,438,759) (86,438,759)
UsD WSTP 116,158  01/18/2024 JPY  (17,157,768) - (822,860) (822,860)
JPY WsTP 20,280,799  01/18/2024  USD (137,619) 927,776 - 927,776

\ 64,017,380 \ (89,125,271) \ 25,107,891
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2
*
SSB 63,089,604 (1,863,652) - 61,225,952
WSTP 927,776 (927,776) - -
64,017,380 (2,791,428) \ - \ 61,225,952
*
SSB 1,863,652 (1,863,652) - -
WSTP 87,261,619 (927,776) - 86,333,843
89,125,271 (2,791,428) \ - \ 86,333,843
* /(
EUR
JPY
SSB
usb
WSTP
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US Municipal Bond Fund
Statement of Financial Position
November 30, 2023

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Assets November 30, 2023 November 30, 2022
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 2.2, 5) $ 194,507,856 $ 161,869,074
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2.1) 5,977,454 4,065,217
Receivables for:

Units issued (Note 2.10, 3) 1,196,639 474,223

Securities sold (Note 2.4) - 2,800,000
Other assets 22,415 13,505
Total assets 201,704,364 169,222,019

Liabilities
Payables for:

Fee agent fees (Note 8.2C) 329,677 297,316
Units repurchased (Note 2.8, 2.10, 3) 184,774 2,902,286
Investment management fees (Note 8.2B) 64,886 147,427
Custody fees (Note 8.1B) 63,838 33,691
Professional fees (Note 8.1F) 62,515 19,333
Distribution fees (Note 8.1C) 40,408 33,981
Administrator fees (Note 8.1A) 35,278 22,172
Agent member company fees (Note 8.2E) 8,092 7,623
Printing fees 5,458 -
Transfer agent fees (Note 8.1D) 797 599
Registration fees 630 630
Liabilities (excluding equity) 796,353 3,465,058
Equity (being net assets attributable to the holder of units) $ 200,908,011 $ 165,756,961

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended November 30, 2023
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Income November 30, 2023 November 30, 2022
Net income/(loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL(D
Dividend income (Note 2.11) $ 7,626,372 $ 7,615,642
Interest income (Note 2.11) 249,525 37,137
Net realized (loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (Note 2.11, 7) (142,983) (3,923,896)
Net change in unrealized (depreciation) on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Note 2.2, 2.11, 7) (2,544,607) (39,950,000)
Net realized gain on foreign currency transactions (Note 2.6) - 165
Total income/(loss) 5,188,307 (36,220,952)
Expenses
Fee agent fees (Note 8.2A, 8.2C) 1,293,008 1,392,643
Distribution fees (Note 8.1C) 468,481 504,581
Investment management fees (Note 8.2B) 374,785 403,665
Administrator fees (Note 8.1A) 112,436 121,099
Custody fees (Note 8.1B) 77,435 85,792
Professional fees (Note 8.1F) 65,561 55,308
Printing fees 21,897 21,889
Transfer agent fees (Note 8.1D) 21,137 22,582
Agent member company fees (Note 8.2E) 18,739 20,183
Total expenses 2,453,479 2,627,742
Operating profit/(loss) 2,734,828 (38,848,694)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) (being increase/(decrease) in net
assets attributable to the holder of units from operations) $ 2,734,828 $ (38,848,694)

(O This relates to net income from financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss
(““FVTPL”?) including realized and unrealized gains/(losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss, dividend income and interest income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Year Ended November 30, 2023
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

At November 30, 2021 $ 244,776,878
Issue of units (Note 3) 19,644,117
Repurchases of units (Note 2.8, 3) (57,366,190)
Distributions (Note 2.7) (2,449,150)
Total comprehensive (loss) (being (decrease) in net assets

attributable to the holder of units from operations) (38,848,694)
At November 30, 2022 $ 165,756,961
Issue of units (Note 3) 52,369,147
Repurchases of units (Note 2.8, 3) (17,510,263)
Distributions (Note 2.7) (2,442,662)
Total comprehensive income (being increase in net assets attributable

to the holder of units from operations) 2,734,828
At November 30, 2023 $ 200,908,011

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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US Municipal Bond Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended November 30, 2023

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities:

November 30, 2023

November 30, 2022

Total comprehensive income/(loss) (being increase/(decrease) in net

assets attributable to the holder of units from operations) $ 2,734,828 $ (38,848,694)
Adjustments to reconcile total comprehensive income/(loss) (being
increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to the holder of
units from operations) to cash (used in)/provided by operating
activities:
Purchases of investment in the Selected Fund (36,326,372) (13,815,641)
Proceeds from disposition of investment in the Selected Fund 1,000,000 48,300,000
Net (payments) from settlement of forward contracts - (165)
Net realized loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 142,983 3,923,896
Net change in unrealized depreciation on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 2,544,607 39,950,000
Decrease/(increase) in receivables for securities sold 2,800,000 (2,800,000)
(Increase) in other assets (8,910) (11,428)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables(1) 48,807 (70,292)
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities (27,064,057) 36,627,676
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from units issued, net of change in receivables for units
issued 51,646,731 19,596,461
Repurchases of units, net of change in payables for units
repurchased (20,227,775) (54,982,602)
Distributions paid to the holder of units, net of change in payables
for distributions to the holder of units (2,442,662) (2,449,150)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities 28,976,294 (37,835,291)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,912,237 (1,207,615)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (Note 2.1) 4,065,217 5,272,832
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 2.1) $ 5,977,454 $ 4,065,217
Supplementary information on cash flows from operating activities
Interest received $ 249,525 $ 37,137
Dividends received $ 7,626,372 $ 7,615,642

(1 Other payables comprise of fee agent fees, distribution fees, investment management fees, administrator fees,
custody fees, transfer agent fees, agent member company fees, registration fees, professional fees and printing

fees as disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended November 30, 2023
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

1. ORGANIZATION

US Municipal Bond Fund (the““Series Trust””) is a Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman)
111 (formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I1l1) (the““Trust””), an open-ended umbrella
unit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed dated December 2, 2013 under Cayman Islands law.
The Series Trust was established pursuant to a Supplemental Trust Deed dated October 3, 2016 and
executed by Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the““Trustee””), a trust company incorporated under
the laws of the Cayman Islands. The manager of the Series Trust is UBS Management (Cayman)
Limited (formerly Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited) (the““Manager””). The Series Trust
commenced operations on November 16, 2016.

The Trust is an exempted unit trust under the Trusts Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands
and registered under the Mutual Funds Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands on January 22,
2014.

The principal office for the Trustee (and therefore the Series Trust) is One Nexus Way, Camana
Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands.

On December 6, 2021, Corporation Service Company (““CSC>”) announced that a conditional agreement
had been reached on a recommended public offer for all issued and outstanding ordinary shares of
Intertrust Group of which the Trustee is a wholly owned subsidiary. In November 2022, CSC closed

on its acquisition of Intertrust Group.

The Administrator, Custodian and Transfer Agent of the Series Trust is Brown Brothers Harriman &
Co. (the““Administrator””,““Custodian””and““Transfer Agent’>”).

Credit Suisse International acts as the Fee Agent (the““Fee Agent””).

Credit Suisse Securities (Japan) Limited acts as the Agent Member Company (the““Agent Member
Company~?).

The Investment Manager of the Series Trust is Sumitomo Mitsui DS Asset Management Company Limited
(formerly Sumitomo Mitsui Asset Management Company Limited) (the““lInvestment Manager<<).

The Manager has authorized Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation to act as the Distributor (the
““Distributor””) of the units in Japan.

129/242



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2023
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

One class of units in the Series Trust is currently available for issue: Class A Units (the
““Class A Units””). The Series Trust and the Class A Units are denominated in U. S. Dollars
(“USD,’Or“$’,)_

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to seek current income and capital appreciation
by investing indirectly in United States municipal securities (the "Municipal Bonds™). The Series
Trust seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing substantially all of the assets of
the Series Trust into the USD class of units of Municipal Core Fund (the "Selected Fund™).

The Selected Fund is a series trust of Income Investment Trust, a Cayman Islands umbrella unit
trust (the "SF Trust™). The Selected Fund is registered as a Mutual Fund under the Mutual Funds
Act (as amended) of the Cayman Islands and the SF Trust has obtained a tax exemption certificate
from the Cayman Islands Government. Neither the units of the SF Trust, nor the Selected Fund have
been or will be registered under United States Securities Act 1933 and the Selected Fund has not
been and will not be registered under the United States Company Act of 1940. The investment
objective of the Selected Fund is to seek current income and capital appreciation by investing
principally in United States municipal securities.

In order to pursue its investment objective, Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC (the
““Investment Manager of the Selected Fund””) utilizes a multi-disciplinary combination of deep
fundamental bottom-up analysis and macro investment principles to invest in bonds rated Baa3/BBB
- or higher and issued by municipalities domiciled in the United States. The Selected Fund
intends to hold high-rated securities (the highest rating has to be Baa3/BBB- or higher with
reference to Moody*"s, Standard & Poor®s and Fitch). In its discretion, the Investment Manager of
the Selected Fund sells securities whose credit rating fall to Bal/BB+ or below, depending on
market condition.

The Investment Manager of the Series Trust shall have day-to-day investment decision-making and
ongoing monitoring responsibility over the portion of the Series Trust"s portfolio comprising the
Selected Fund and USD cash, money market securities and forward contracts (the "Subadvised
Portfolio™). The Subadvised Portfolio may generate a certain amount of income each month. Such
income is distributed to the unitholder on each distribution date.

At November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, the Series Trust held 100.0% and 87.5%, respectively,
of the Selected Fund®s net assets.
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Currently the Selected Fund has two Classes - Class A JPY Hedged Class and Class C USD Unhedged
Class; of units being offered to investors which have been established for certain Japanese
Investment Trusts. All Classes are subscribed to in Japanese Yen of US Dollars. Class A seeks to
be hedged back to Japanese Yen and Class C is not hedged against USD denominated assets. The
Series Trust invests into the Selected Fund by purchasing the Selected Fund®s redeemable
participating shares in the Class C USD Unhedged Class. The Selected Fund allows repurchases of
these shares on any business day.

Movements in the fair value of the Selected Fund"s portfolio and corresponding movements in the
fair value of the Selected Fund may expose the Series Trust to a loss.

Final Repurchase Day

The Series Trust will continue until the earlier of December 1, 2163 and the earliest practicable
repurchase day following the occurrence of a compulsory repurchase event (the ““Final Repurchase
Day””), unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.

The units are compulsorily repurchased upon the first to occur of any of the following:

(1) the net asset value on any valuation day is $3,000,000 or less and on that valuation day or
thereafter the Manager determines that all of the units should be compulsorily repurchased
by giving notice to all unitholders; or

(i1) the Trustee and the Manager agreeing that all of the units should be compulsorily
repurchased, (each a "Compulsory Repurchase Event'™).

Upon the occurrence of a Compulsory Repurchase Event, each unit is repurchased on the Final
Repurchase Day at the final repurchase price per unit. The final repurchase price per unit is
calculated by the Administrator in its sole discretion in accordance with the Offering Memorandum
and the Appendix 25 as the Net Asset Value per unit on the Final Repurchase Day (or if such day
is not also a valuation day the immediately preceding valuation day). Repurchase Day is each
dealing day which is also a day on which no Series Trust disruption event occurs and/or such
other day or days as the Manager may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust.
Unitholder is able to receive an amount in respect of each unit repurchased on any Repurchase Day
prior to the Final Repurchase Day equal to the Net Asset Value per unit as at the relevant
Repurchase Day (or if that Repurchase Day is not also a valuation day the immediately preceding
valuation day) (the““Repurchase Price””). There is no repurchase fee applied to the Repurchase
Price in respect of each unit being repurchased.
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On March 19, 2023, UBS Group AG (““UBS””) agreed to acquire Credit Suisse Group AG (““Credit
Suisse””) following intervention by the Swiss Federal Department of Finance, the Swiss National
Bank and the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

On June 12, 2023, UBS Group AG completed the take over of Credit Suisse Group AG.

The Series Trust has no exposure related to investments in financial assets with Credit Suisse
International.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Trustee on April 30, 2024.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless
otherwise stated. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and requires the Trustee and the
Manager to exercise their judgment in the process of applying the Series Trust"s accounting
policies. Areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Series Trust has adopted Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27)
(2012) (the Amendments). Management concluded that the Series Trust meets the definition of an
investment entity.

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at
amortized cost, fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) and fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI). The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally
based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.
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On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortized

cost or FVTPL.
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:

i) It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and,

i1) Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely represent
payments of principal and interest (SPPI).

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if any of the following apply:

i) Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding;

ii) It is not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual
cash flows, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell;

iii)At initial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured at FVTPL when doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases.
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(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Series Trust considers the

contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains

a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it

would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Series Trust considers:

The

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

leverage features;

prepayment and extension features;

terms that limit the Series Trust"s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-
recourse features); and

features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of
interest rates).

Series Trust has determined that it has two business models:

Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents, receivables for
units issued and other assets. These financial assets are held to collect contractual cash
flow.

Other business model: this includes financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(Investment in the Selected Fund). These financial assets are managed and their performance
is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking place.
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In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held, the Series Trust considers all of the relevant information about how the business is
managed, including:

- the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This
includes whether the investment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising
cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust's
management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

- how the investment manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons
for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for
derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust"s
continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost include payables for units repurchased, fee agent
fees, investment management fees, distribution fees, professional fees, administrator fees, agent
member company fees, custody fees, transfer agent fees and registration fees.

Impairment of financial assets

The““expected credit loss””(ECL) model applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost and
debt investment at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments.
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Based on the Series Trust"s assessment, the ECL model does not have a material impact on the
Series Trust®"s financial assets because:

- The majority of the financial assets are measured at FVTPL and the impairment requirements
do not apply to such instruments.

- The financial assets at amortized cost are short-term (i.e. no longer than 12 months), of
high credit quality and/or highly collateralized. Accordingly, the ECLs on such assets are
expected to be small.

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the year ended
November 30, 2023:

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning
after December 1, 2022 and earlier application is permitted; however, the Series Trust has not
early applied these new or amended standards in preparing these financial statements as they do
not have a material effect on the Series Trust"s financial statements.

2.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Series Trust considers all cash, foreign cash and short-term deposits with original maturity
of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

At November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, the Series Trust held the following balances as cash
and cash equivalents:

2023 2022
Cash $ 21,849 $ 9,400
Time deposit 5,955,605 4,055,817
Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position $ 5,977,454 % 4,065,217

2.2 Financial Assets and Liabilities

(A) Classification
The Series Trust classifies financial assets and liabilities into the fol lowing categories:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Mandatorily at FVTPL: Investment in the Selected Fund.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss consist of the following:

November 30, 2023 November 30, 2023
- Fair Value - Cost

Investment in Selected Fund $ 194,507,856 $ 231,790,089

November 30, 2022 November 30, 2022
- Fair Value - Cost

Investment in Selected Fund $ 161,869,074 $ 196,606,700

Financial assets at amortized cost:
Loans and receivables: cash and cash equivalents, receivables for units issued, receivable
for securities sold and other assets.

At November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022 the Series Trust held no financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
Other liabilities: payables for purchase of units repurchased, fee agent fees, investment
management fees, distribution fees, professional fees, administrator fees, agent member
company fees, custody fees, transfer agent fees, registration fees and printing fees.

(B) Recognition/Derecognition

The Series Trust recognizes financial assets and liabilities on the date it becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investments are
recognized on the trade date - the date on which the Series Trust commits to purchase or sell the
investment. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or the Series Trust has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Financial liabilities are derecognized when its contractual obligations are
discharged, canceled or expired.
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(C) Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at
fair value with transaction costs recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Subsequent
to initial recognition, all financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ©
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss® category are presented in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise. Realized gains or losses
on sale of investments are calculated using first-in-first-out method.

Financial assets and liabilities other than those at fair value through profit or loss are
carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses, if
any. This is considered to approximate fair value due to the short-term or immediate nature of
these instruments.

(D) Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives and trading securities) is based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on
the reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. Investments or other
assets for which market quotations are not readily available are valued at their fair value as
determined in good faith in accordance with procedures adopted by the Trustee with advice from
the Manager. The resulting change in net unrealized gains or losses are reflected in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(E) Forward Contracts

Forward contracts are commitments either to purchase or sell a designated financial instrument,
currency, commodity or an index at a specified future date for a specified price and may be
settled in cash or another financial asset. Forward contracts are valued using observable inputs,
such as currency exchange rates or commodity prices, applied to notional amounts stated in the
applicable contracts. Gains and losses are reported in net realized gain or loss on financial
assets through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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(F) Investment in Selected Fund

In principle, the Investment Manager will invest a majority of its asset in the Selected Fund.
The USD class of the Selected Fund is denominated in USD and will not be hedged into other
currencies. The Investment Manager will not invest in non-USD denominated assets. The Series
Trust®s investment in the Selected Fund is subject to the terms and conditions of the Selected
Fund"s offering documentation. The Series Trust records its investments in the Selected Fund at
fair value based primarily on the Selected Fund"s net assets value (““NAV”?), as determined by
the administrator of the Selected Fund. The Series Trust reviews the details of the reported
information obtained from the Selected Fund"s administrator and considers: (i) the liquidity of
the Selected Fund, or its underlying investments, (ii) the value date of the NAV provided, (iii)
any restrictions on redemptions, and (iv) the basis of accounting. Since the Series Trust invests
substantially all of its assets in the Selected Fund, net capital appreciation or depreciation,
respectively, of the Series Trust is generally based on net capital appreciation or depreciation,
respectively, of the Selected Fund. The value of the Series Trust"s investment in the Selected
Fund is based on available information and does not necessarily represent the amount that might
ultimately be realized, as such amount depends on future circumstances and cannot reasonably be
denominated unlit the Selected Fund®s underlying investment are actually liquidated. Further, the
Series Trust"s investment in the Selected Fund in indirectly subjected to restrictions, if any,
of the liquidity of the Selected Fund®s investments.

The Series Trust®"s investment in the Selected Fund is considered to be liquid and can be redeemed
on any business day. The Series Trust may submit to the Trustee of the Selected Fund or its duly
designated agent a Repurchase Notice requesting to have all or a portion its units repurchased on
the relevant repurchase date. The Trustee of the Selected Fund should receive the repurchase
notice by electronic transmission on or prior to 7:00 a.m. Eastern Time in the United States of
America on the applicable repurchase date. If such notice is not respect of the entire holding
units of the Series Trust, then the Trustee of the Selected Fund in its sole discretion may apply
a minimum repurchase requirement of more than one unit or JPY 10,000 (or its equivalent in any
currency).

2.3 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of
Financial Position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. As at November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, all financial assets and
liabilities are shown at their gross amounts as none met the criteria for financial instrument
offsetting, and therefore have not been offset in the Statement of Financial Position.
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2.4 Receivables for Sale of Investment in the Selected Fund

Receivables for securities sold and payables for securities purchased represent trading
transactions that have been contracted for but not yet settled on the Statement of Financial
Position date. These amounts are recognized initially and subsequently measured at fair value,
less provision for impairment for amounts of receivables for securities sold. A provision for
impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Series Trust will not be able
to collect all amounts of receivables for securities sold. Significant financial difficulties of
the broker, probability that the broker will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and
default in payments are considered indicators that the amount of receivables for securities sold
is impaired. As at November 30, 2023, there were no payables for securities purchased.

2.5 Expenses
Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.6 Foreign Currency Translation

(A) Functional and Presentation Currency

The performance of the Series Trust is measured and reported to the investors in U.S. Dollars.
The Trustee considers the U.S. Dollar as the currency that most faithfully represents the
economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and conditions of the Series Trust. The
financial statements are presented in U.S. Dollars, which is the Series Trust®"s functional and
presentation currency.

(B) Transactions and Balances

Financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated in U.S. Dollar
amounts at the date of valuation. Purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities, issue
and repurchase of units and income and expense items denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into U.S. Dollar amounts on the respective dates of such transactions.

Reported net realized or unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from changes in
foreign exchange rates on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are included in net realized gain or loss on financial assets and liabilities through profit or
loss, and net change in unrealized appreciation or depreciation on financial assets and
liabilities through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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Realized and unrealized appreciation or depreciation from foreign currency transactions and
translation are disclosed separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.7 Distributions

The Series Trust may generate a certain amount of income each month. The current policy of the
Series Trust is to pay to unitholder a monthly distribution in respect of each distribution date
of an amount similar to the generated income attributable to the corresponding distribution
period.

The monthly distribution is expected to be computed from the following separate elements:

(i) an amount equal to the distributions received from the Selected Fund (net of all
applicable taxes); and

(i1) interest accrued on the distributions received from (a) above, from the time received by
the Custodian until paid out on the corresponding distribution date (the items referred to
in paragraphs (a) - (b) hereafter referred to as the "Generated Income™).

The amount of distribution paid in respect of each distribution date is determined by the Manager
in its sole discretion taking into account Generated Income, realized and unrealized capital
gains from the Selected Fund, and miscellaneous costs, among other factors, per unit each month.
The Manager may, in circumstances where it deems appropriate, elect that a monthly distribution
is not payable in respect of units for a relevant month. Circumstances where the Manager may make
such an election, include but are not limited to where it determines in its sole discretion that
application of the Series Trust"s investment objectives and policies have generated a negative
performance over the previous month or have underperformed to the extent that the Manager deems
it appropriate to make such an election.

Distributions declared and paid during the years ended November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022
were as follows:

2023 2022
Total Amount Total Amount

Class A Units $ 2,442,662 $ 2,449,150
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2.8 Repurchases of Units

The Series Trust has units which are repurchased at the holder®s option. The Series Trust
classifies its puttable instruments as liabilities in accordance with 1AS 32 (Amendment) <
Financial instruments: Presentation®. The amendment requires puttable financial instruments that
meet the definition of a financial liability to be classified as equity where certain strict
criteria are met. Those criteria include:

The puttable instruments must entitle the holder to a pro-rata share of net assets;

The puttable instruments must be the most subordinated class and class features must be
identical;

There must be no contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset other
than the obligation on the issuer to repurchase; and

The total expected cash flows from the puttable instrument over its life must be based
substantially on the profit or loss of the issuer.

As these conditions were met, the Series Trust®s units have been classified as equity at November
30, 2023 and November 30, 2022.

Units can be put back to the Series Trust at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of
the Series Trust®s total equity.

Units are carried at the repurchased amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial
Position date if the holder exercises the right to put the units back into the Series Trust.

Units are issued and repurchased at prices based on the Series Trust®s total equity per unit at
the time of issue or repurchase. The Series Trust"s equity per unit is calculated by dividing the
total equity by the total number of outstanding units.

The Selected Fund finances its operations by issuing redeemable shares which are puttable at the
holder®s option and entitles the holder to a proportional stake in the respective Series Trust"s
net assets. The Series Trust holds shares in the Selected Fund. The Series Trust"s maximum
exposure to loss from its interests in the Selected Fund is equal to the total fair value of its
investments in the Selected Fund. Once the Series Trust has disposed of its shares in the
Selected Fund the Series Trust ceases to be exposed to any risk from the Selected Fund.
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2.9 Indemnities

The Trustee and the Manager, on behalf of the Series Trust, enter into certain contracts that
contain a variety of indemnifications. The Series Trust"s maximum exposure under these
arrangements is unknown. However, the Series Trust has not had prior claims of losses pursuant to
these contracts and expects the risk of loss to be remote.

2.10 Receivables for Units Issued and Payables for Units Repurchased

Receivable for units issued is carried at the issuance amount that is receivable at the Statement
of Financial Position date. Payable for repurchase of units is carried at the repurchase amount
that is payable at the Statement of Financial Position date.

2.11 Net income or loss from financial instruments at FVTPL

Net income from financial instruments at FVTPL includes realized and unrealized gain or loss on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, interest income and
dividend income. Net realized gain or loss from financial instruments at FVTPL is calculated
using the first in, first out method. Net realized gain or loss on financial assets and
liabilities at FVTPL represents the difference between the cost of the financial instruments and
its settlement price of the sale trade.

Net change in unrealized (depreciation)/appreciation on financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL
represents the difference between the carrying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning
of the period, or the transaction price if it was purchased in the current reporting period and
its carrying amount at the end of the reporting period. Refer to Note 7 for further details.

Interest income presented on the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprise interest on financial
assets and liabilities at amortized cost calculated on an effective interest basis.

Dividend income presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprise dividend on financial
assets and financial liabilities measured at FVTPL. Dividend income is recognized when the right
to receive payment is established.

2.12 Taxation

The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempting it from all
local income, profits and capital gains taxes until December 2, 2063. No such taxes are levied in
the Cayman Islands at the present time.
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The Series Trust could incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income
and capital gains. Such income or gain would be recorded gross of withholding taxes in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Withholding taxes would be shown as a separate item in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. No withholding tax expense was paid during the years ended
November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022.

The Selected Fund invests in securities domiciled in countries other than Cayman Islands. Many of
these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable
to non-residents including the Selected Fund. These capital gains taxes are required to be
determined on a self-assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the
Selected Fund®s broker on a“withholding® basis.

In accordance with IAS 12 - Income Taxes, the Series Trust is required to recognize a tax
liability when it is probable that the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax liability to
be assessed on the Series Trust®"s capital gains sourced from such foreign country, assuming the
relevant taxing authorities have full knowledge of all the facts and circumstances. The tax
liability is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant taxation authorities
using the tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. There is sometimes uncertainty about the way enacted tax law is applied to
offshore investment Series Trusts. This creates uncertainty about whether or not a tax liability
will ultimately be paid by the Series Trust. Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax
liabilities management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances available at the
time which could influence the likelihood of payment, including any formal or informal practices
of the relevant tax authorities.

As at November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, the Manager has determined that the Series Trust
did not have a liability to record for any unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying
financial statements. While this represents the Manager®™s best estimate there remains a risk that
the foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes on capital gains earned by the Series
Trust. This could happen without giving prior warning, possibly on a retrospective basis, and
could result in a loss to the Series Trust.
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2.13 Investment in unconsolidated structured entities

The Series Trust has concluded that all investments in the unlisted Selected Fund, in which it
holds an interest but does not consolidate, meets the definition of structured entities due to
the following:

the voting rights in these entities are not the dominant rights in deciding who controls
them as they relate to administrative tasks only;

the entities® activities are restricted by their respective investment strategy or offering
documents; and

these entities have a narrow and well-defined objective to provide investment opportunities
to investors.

The nature of and risks associated with the Series Trust"s interest in the other funds are
disclosed in Note 5.

3. REPURCHASES OF UNITS

The Net Asset Value of each unit of the Series Trust is calculated by dividing the Net Asset
Value of the Series Trust by the total number of units of the Series Trust then outstanding. The
Administrator computes the Net Asset Value of the Series Trust at the close of business on each
dealing day.

The price of units, for all purposes, is calculated and paid in U.S. Dollars.

The minimum initial subscription must be no less than 1 unit. All unitholders must complete a
subscription application. The initial purchase price of units is $100 per unit. All payments for
the units must be made in U.S. Dollars. The Trustee may reject any subscription for any reason
and without providing reasons.

After the initial issue of units, an eligible investor may subscribe for units on any subsequent
subscription date at the relevant subscription price. All payments for the units shall be made in
U.S. Dollars. The Trustee may reject any subscription for any reason and without providing
reasons.

The Trustee or its duly designated agent must receive the subscription price for the units on or

prior to 5:00 p.m. (Tokyo time) by no later than the second business day after the relevant
subscription date. Subscription applications are irrevocable.
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The total net assets, units outstanding and net assets value per unit as of November 30, 2023
were as follows:

Net Asset Value
Classes of units Total net assets Units outstanding per unit

Class A Units $ 200,908,011 2,198,447 $ 91.3863

The total net assets, units outstanding and net assets value per unit as of November 30, 2022 were as

follows:

Net Asset Value
Classes of units Total net assets Units outstanding per unit
Class A Units $ 165,756,961 1,822,411 $ 90.9548

As of November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022 all issued units were held by one unitholder, who holds 100%
of interest in the net assets of the Series Trust.

Aunitholder may transfer its holdings in units only with the prior written consent of the Trustee which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. No transfer of units will be effective and binding
on the Trustee or unitholder until entered into the Series Trust"s register of unitholders.

Each unitholder may submit to the Trustee or its duly designated agent a repurchase notice requesting to
have all or a portion of its units repurchased at the Repurchase Price on the relevant repurchase date.
Repurchase orders may be submitted in units. If such notice is not in respect of the entire holding units
of such unitholder recorded in the register of unitholders then the Trustee in its sole discretion may
apply aminimum repurchase requirement of 1 unit. Repurchase notices are irrevocable.

At the time of each repurchase of units prior to the Final Repurchase Day, no repurchase fee is applied to
each unit being repurchased.

Contingent Deferred Sales Charge (*'CDSC™)

The repurchase proceeds payable to a unitholder may be subject to the deduction of the CDSC (if
applicable).
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For units that are repurchased prior to the fifth anniversary of the date of their issue (whether
voluntarily or by way of a compulsory repurchase), a CDSC, calculated as a percentage of the purchase
price paid at the time of subscription for such units will be charged by the Distributor in accordance
wi'th the following scale and paid to Credit Suisse International.

Holding Period CDSC
1 year or less 2.00%
More than 1 year to 2 years or less 1.60%
More than 2 years to 3 years or less 1.20%
More than 3 years to 4 years or less 0.80%
More than 4 years to 5 years or less 0.40%
More than 5 years None

For the purpose of calculating the holding period applicable to the CDSC, units will start ageing from
the first day of the month which follows the month in which such units were issued until the relevant
Repurchase Day .

The CDSC (if applicable) will be deducted from the Repurchase Price and is payable by the relevant
repurchasing unitholder to the Fee Agent and not to the Series Trust.

Upon a Compulsory Repurchase Event occurring or the Series Trust terminating prior to the Final
Repurchase Day, the CDSC shall similarly apply; and the CDSC will be calculated as if the relevant units
were repurchased on the day on which the Compulsory Repurchase Event or termination of the Series Trust
takes effect, unless the Manager in its discretion determines otherwise.

In accordance with the terms of the Fee Agent Appointment Agreement, the Fee Agent shall continue to be
entitled to receive the CDSC if its appointment as Fee Agent is terminated.

Amounts payable to the unitholder in connection with the repurchase of units of any class are paid in cash
but may be made in kind (or partially in kind) by the distribution of securities held by the Trustee to the
extent that the Trustee, in consultation with the Manager, determines it to be in the best interests of
the unitholder. IT such a determination is made by the Trustee, distributions to all repurchasing
unitholders on the same day are made on the same basis.
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Payment may also be made in such other currency that may be freely purchased with such applicable
currency as aunitholder may request, provided that any foreign exchange cost shall be deducted from the
amount payable to such unitholder. No such repurchase proceeds will bear interest prior to actual
distribution.

During the year ended November 30, 2023, the proceeds from units issued and repurchased were as follows:

Proceeds from Proceeds from
Classes of units units issued units repurchased
Class A Units $ 52,369,147 $ (17,510,263)

During the year ended November 30, 2022, the proceeds from units issued and repurchased were as

follows:

Proceeds from Proceeds from
Classes of units units issued units repurchased
Class A Units $ 19,644,117 $ (57,366,190)

During the years ended November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, the number of units issued,
repurchased and outstanding were as follows:

At At
Classes of units November 30, 2022 Units issued Units repurchased November 30, 2023
Class A Units 1,822,411 566,946 (190,910) 2,198,447

At At
Classes of units November 30, 2021 Units issued Units repurchased November 30, 2022
Class A Units 2,212,610 192,357 (582,556) 1,822,411

The issue and repurchase of units and payments in respect of such transactions will be suspended
in any circumstances where the calculation of the Net Asset Value per unit is suspended. The
Trustee will inform unitholder of such a suspension as soon as practicable after it is imposed or
lifted. Subscription applications and repurchase notices cannot be withdrawn during such
suspension and will be processed for the next subscription date or repurchase date, as the case
may be.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Management makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities. Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The Series Trust may, from time to time, hold financial instruments that
are not quoted in active markets, such as over-the-counter derivatives. Fair values of such
instruments are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation techniques (for
example, models) are used to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed
by the Manager.

5. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

5.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

The Series Trust"s investment portfolio mainly comprises of the Selected Fund. The Series Trust"s
activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair
value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The management of these
risks is carried out by the Manager under policies approved by the Trustee.

The Series Trust may be materially affected by the actions of another entity investing in the
Selected Fund. For example, if another unitholder of the Selected Fund repurchases some or all of
its interests in the Selected Fund, the Selected Fund and, in turn, the Series Trust, may
experience higher pro rata operating expenses, thereby producing lower returns. Similarly, the
Selected Fund may become less diverse due to repurchases from its other unitholders, resulting in
increased portfolio risk. The Selected Fund may restrict its investment activities or be
precluded from investing in certain instruments due to regulatory restrictions on certain of its
direct or indirect investors or otherwise, which may have an adverse effect on the performance of
the Selected Fund, and, in turn, the Series Trust.

(A) Market Risk

(i) Currency Risk

Investment in the Selected Fund and forward contracts in which the Series Trust invests may be
denominated or quoted in currencies other than the functional currency of the Series Trust. For
this reason, changes in foreign currency exchange rates can affect the value of the Series
Trust®s portfolio.
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Generally, when the Series Trust®s functional currency rises in value against another currency, a
security denominated in that currency loses value because the currency is worth less giving
effect to the conversion into the Series Trust"s functional currency. Conversely, when the Series
Trust"s functional currency decreases in value against another currency, a security denominated
in that currency gains value.

This risk, generally known as "currency risk," means that a strong functional currency of the
Series Trust may reduce returns to investors while a weak functional currency of the Series Trust
may increase those returns. Currency rates may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time
for a number of reasons, including changes in interest rates, intervention (or the failure to
intervene) by the governments, central banks or supranational entities such as the International
Monetary Fund, or by the imposition of currency controls or other political developments. As a
result, the Series Trust"s investments in foreign-currency denominated securities may reduce its
returns. Certain positions taken by the Series Trust are designed to profit from forecasting
currency price movements. Predicting future prices is inherently uncertain and the losses
incurred, if the market moves against a position, will not be hedged. The speculative aspect of
attempting to predict absolute price movements is generally perceived to exceed that involved in
attempting to predict relative price fluctuations.

Through the use of various types of foreign currency transactions, the Series Trust may be
exposed to the performance of a particular currency or currencies to contribute to the
performance of the Series Trust. There can be no assurance that the Manager will employ a
successful currency program and the Series Trust could incur losses attributable to its currency
activities when the value of the functional currency weakens against the other currencies of the
Series Trust. In addition, the Series Trust will incur transaction costs in connection with the
currency strategy designated by the Manager.

At November 30, 2022 the Series Trust was not exposed to currency risk.
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The table below summarizes the Series Trust®"s exposure to currency risks at November 30, 2023:

Financial
At Assets at Fair Other Assets % of Net
November 30, Cash and Cash Value through and Liabilities Asset
2023 Equivalents Profit or Loss (Net) Net Value
Japanese Yen JPY  $ - $ -3 (5,458) $ (5,458) 0.0%
- - (5,458) (5,458) 0.0%
United States
Dollar usD 5,977,454 194,507,856 428,159 200,913,469 100.0%
$ 5,977,454 $ 194,507,856 $ 422,701 $ 200,908,011 100.0%

The following table summarizes the sensitivity of the Series Trust's assets and liabilities to
changes in foreign exchange movements at November 30, 2023. The analysis is based on the
assumptions that the relevant foreign exchange rate increased/(decreased) against the U.S. Dollar
by the percentages disclosed in the table, with all other variables held constant. This
represents management"s best estimate of a reasonably possible shift in the foreign exchange
rates, having regard to historical volatility of those rates.

Reasonably possible

shift in currency rate Impact to Series Trust
Currency 2023 Net Assets
JPY +/- 6.22% +/- $ 339

(i1) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that prices of fixed income securities generally increase when
interest rates decline and decrease when interest rates increase. Prices of longer term
securities generally change more in response to interest rate changes than prices of shorter term
securities. The Series Trust may lose money if short-term or long-term interest rates rise
sharply or otherwise change in a manner not anticipated by Series Trust management. When interest
rates fluctuate, the duration of the security may be used as an indication of the degree of
change in the debt price of the debt security. The bigger the security"s duration value, the
larger the change in the price of the debt security for a given movement in interest rates may
be. Therefore, the Net Asset Value may fluctuate.

Interest bearing assets held by the Series Trust are comprised of cash and cash equivalents whose
maturity is less than three months and the investment in the Selected Fund.

The yield on the Selected Fund®s (and indirectly, the Series Trust"s) investments may be
sensitive to changes in prevailing interest rates, which may result in a mismatch between the
Selected Fund®s asset yield and borrowing rates and consequently reduce or eliminate income
derived from its investments.
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If interest rates increase, prices of fixed income securities generally decline, reducing the
value of the Selected Fund®s (and indirectly, the Series Trust"s) investments. A major change in
interest rates or a significant decline in the market value of the Selected Fund"s (and
indirectly, the Series Trust®"s) investments, or other market event, could cause the value of the
investments of the Master Fund®s investors (and indirectly the unitholders® investments in the
Series Trust), or its yield, to decline.

The Series Trust may invest in municipal bond securities through its indirect exposure to the
investments of the Selected Fund. Any changes to prevailing interest rates or changes in
expectations of future rates may result in an increase or decrease in the value of the securities
held.

At November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, should interest rates have lowered or risen by 50
basis points with all other variables remaining constant, the increase or decrease in total
comprehensive income of the Series Trust (being increase in net assets attributable to the holder
of units from operations for the period) would amount to approximately $29,778 and $20,279,
respectively, assuming that the cash position will be held for one year.

(iii) Market Price Risk

The market price of investments owned by the Series Trust and securities held by the Selected
Fund may go up or down, sometimes rapidly or unpredictably. Securities may decline in value due
to factors affecting securities markets generally or particular industries represented in the
securities markets. The value of a security may decline due to general market conditions which
are not specifically related to a particular company, such as real or perceived adverse economic
conditions, supply and demand for particular securities or instruments, changes in the general
outlook for corporate earnings, changes in interest or currency rates or adverse investor
sentiment. They may also decline due to factors which affect a particular industry or industries,
such as labor shortages or increased production costs and competitive conditions within an
industry. During a general downturn in the securities markets, multiple asset classes may decline
in value simultaneously. Equity securities generally have greater price volatility than fixed
income securities.

An increase in market prices of the investment in the Selected Fund of 1% at November 30, 2023

and November 30, 2022, would have increased the total equity by $1,945,079 and $1,618,691,
respectively. A decrease of 1% would, all else being equal, have an equal but opposite effect.
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As at November 30, 2023, the investments of the Selected Fund are mainly in Corporate Bonds and
Municipal Bonds, which represent approximately 11% (2022: 11%) and 87% (2022: 88%) of the net
assets of the Selected Fund, respectively.

For the Selected Fund, the investments are primarily concentrated in the United States of America
at November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022.

(B) Credit Risk

Changes in an issuer™s credit rating or the market"s perception of an issuer™s creditworthiness
may affect the value of the Series Trust's investment in that issuer. The degree of credit risk
depends on both the financial condition of the issuer and the terms of the obligation.

Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the credit risk
associated with debt instruments that may be held by the Selected Fund. The increased credit risk
may prevent the Selected Fund®s investment objective and consequently the Series Trust"s
investment objective from being achieved. All transactions in listed securities held by the
Selected Fund are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is
considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received
payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the securities have been received by the broker. The
trade will fail if either party fails to meet their obligation.

The Investment Manager monitors the Series Trust®s credit position on an on-going basis.

Municipal Bond securities in which the Selected Fund may invest could be subject to the credit
risk of the underlying assets and in the event of default of such assets and the exhaustion of
any underlying credit support, the Selected Fund may not recover its full investment.
Furthermore, it is possible that some issuers of fixed income securities in which the Selected
Fund invests will be unable to make the required payments on their debt securities held by the
Selected Fund. Debt securities could also go up or down in value based on the perceived
creditworthiness of issuers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of all financial assets of the Series Trust as of November
30, 2023 and November 30, 2022 is the carrying amounts as shown on the Statement of Financial
Position. No collateral or other credit enhancements are held by the Series Trust. None of these
assets are impaired or past due.
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The clearing and depository operations for the Selected Fund"s security transactions are mainly
concentrated with the Custodian. At November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, substantially all
cash and cash equivalents and investments are placed in custody with the Custodian, with a Fitch
credit rating of A+.

The following table summarizes the credit quality of the Selected Fund®s debt portfolio at
November 30, 2023 as a percentage of net assets of the Selected Fund.

Rating” % of Net Assets

Aaa 9.5%
Aal 10.3%
Aa2 27.8%
Aa3 18.1%
Al 16.9%
A2 8.4%
A3 4._6%
Baal 0.9%
Baa2 2.3%

98.8%

*Security ratings, if any, are obtained from Moody"s Investor Service.

The following table summarizes the credit quality of the Selected Fund®s debt portfolio at
November 30, 2022 as a percentage of net assets of the Selected Fund.

Rating”* % of Net Assets

Aaa 3.1%
Aal 8.0%
Aa2 27.4%
Aa3 18.4%
Al 21.6%
A2 9.6%
A3 5.2%
Baal 2.5%
Baa? 2.8%

98.6%

*Security ratings, if any, are obtained from Moody®s Investor Service.
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(C) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk exists when particular investments are difficult to purchase or sell. The Series
Trust™s investments in illiquid securities may reduce the returns of the Series Trust because it
may be unable to sell the illiquid securities at an advantageous time or price. To the extent
that the Series Trust"s principal investment strategies involve derivatives or securities with
substantial market and/or credit risk, the Series Trust will tend to have the greatest exposure
to liquidity risk.

The tables below analyze the Series Trust"s financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping
based on the remaining period at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

At November 30, 2023 Less than 1 month 1 - 3 months Total

Payables for:
Fee agent fees $ 329,677 $ - $ 329,677
Units repurchased 184,774 - 184,774
Investment management fees 64,886 - 64,886
Custody fees 63,838 - 63,838
Professional fees 62,515 - 62,515
Distribution fees 40,408 - 40,408
Administrator fees 35,278 - 35,278
Agent member company fees 8,092 - 8,092
Printing fees 5,458 - 5,458
Transfer agent fees 797 - 797
Registration fees 630 630

Contractual cash out flows (excluding net assets

attributable to the holder of units) $ 796,353 $ - % 796,353

At November 30, 2022 Less than 1 month 1 - 3 months Total

Payables for:
Units repurchased $ 2,902,286 $ - $ 2,902,286
Fee agent fees 297,316 - 297,316
Investment management fees 147,427 - 147,427
Distribution fees 33,981 - 33,981
Custody fees 33,691 - 33,691
Administrator fees 22,172 - 22,172
Professional fees 19,333 - 19,333
Agent member company fees 7,623 - 7,623
Registration fees 630 - 630
Transfer agent fees 599 - 599

Contractual cash out flows (excluding net assets

attributable to the holder of units) $ 3,465,058 $ -3 3,465,058
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The Manager monitors the Series Trust®s liquidity position on an on-going basis.

Liquidity risk is managed by investing no more than 15% of the Net Asset Value in illiquid
assets.

There were no derivative financial instruments held by the Series Trust as at November 30, 2023
and November 30, 2022.

Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the liquidity risk
associated with unitholder repurchases in accordance with the terms in the Selected Fund®s
Prospectus. The Series Trust is managed to include liquid investments sufficient to meet normal
liquidity needs although substantial repurchases of Units in the Series Trust could require the
Selected Fund to liquidate its investments more rapidly than otherwise desirable in order to
raise cash for the repurchases. These factors could adversely affect the value of the units
repurchased and the valuation of the units that remain outstanding and the liquidity of the
Series Trust"s remaining assets if more liquid assets have been sold to meet the repurchases.

There were no repurchase fees applied in respect to the Selected Fund for the years ended
November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022.

(D) Risk Management

The Series Trust"s Investment Manager®s team is supported by certain risk management systems and
professionals, which provide regular reporting on all portfolio positions and quantitative risk
measures.
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The capital of the Series Trust is represented by the net assets attributable to the holder of
units.

The amount of net assets attributable to the holder of units can change significantly on a daily
basis as the Series Trust is subject to daily subscriptions and repurchases at the discretion of
the unitholder. The Series Trust"s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Series
Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for the unitholder and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the development
of the investment activities of the Series Trust. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Series Trust"s policy is to perform the following:

Monitor the level of daily subscriptions and repurchases relative to the liquid assets and
adjust the amount of distributions the Series Trust pays to the holder of units.

Repurchase and issue new units in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Series
Trust.

The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to the holder
of units.

5.2 Additional Series Trust"s Risks

(A) Custody Risk

Neither the Trustee nor the Manager controls the custodianship of the Series Trust"s entire
holding of indirect investments. The Custodian or other banks or brokerage firms selected to act
as custodians may become insolvent, causing the Series Trust to lose all or a portion of the
funds or securities held by those custodians.

(B) Risk of Indemnification
The Trustee, the Manager, the Administrator, the Custodian, and other parties, and each of their
respective agents, principals, officers, employees, and affiliates are entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Series Trust under certain circumstances which may result in a decrease
in Net Asset Value per unit.
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(C) Settlement Risk

Settlement and clearance procedures in certain foreign markets differ significantly from those in
the United States, the European Union and Japan. Foreign settlement and clearance procedures and
trade regulations also may involve certain risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of
securities) not typically associated with the settlement of United States investments. At times,
settlements in certain foreign countries have not kept pace with the number of securities
transactions. These problems may make it difficult for the Selected Fund and ultimately, the
Manager to carry out transactions for the account of the Series Trust. If the Manager cannot
settle or is delayed in settling a purchase of securities, it may miss attractive investment
opportunities and certain of the Series Trust"s assets may be uninvested with no return earned
thereon for some period.

IT the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in settling a sale
of securities, the Series Trust may lose money if the value of the underlying security then
declines or, if it has contracted to sell the security to another party; the Series Trust could
be liable for any losses incurred.

(D) Derivatives

The Manager may use derivative instruments to hedge the Series Trust®s investments or to seek to
enhance the Series Trust"s returns. Derivatives allow the risk exposure of the Series Trust to
increase or decrease more quickly and efficiently than other types of instruments. Derivatives
are volatile and involve significant risks, including:

Credit Risk - the risk that the counterparty (the party on the other side of the transaction)
on a derivative transaction will be unable to honor its financial obligation to the Series
Trust.

Leverage Risk - the risk associated with certain types of investments or trading strategies
that relatively small market movements may result in large changes in the value of an
investment. Certain investments or trading strategies that involve leverage can result in
losses that greatly exceed the amount originally invested.

Liquidity Risk - the risk that certain securities may be difficult or impossible to sell at

the time that the seller would like or at the price that the seller believes the security is
currently worth.
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The Manager may use derivatives for hedging purposes for the Series Trust, including anticipatory
hedges. Hedging is a strategy in which the Manager uses a derivative to offset the risks
associated with other Series Trust®s holdings. While hedging can reduce losses, it can also
reduce or eliminate gains or cause losses if the market moves in a manner different from that
anticipated by the Manager or if the cost of the derivative outweighs the benefit of the hedge.
Hedging also involves the risk that changes in the value of the derivative will not match those
of the holdings being hedged as expected by the Manager, in which case any losses on the holdings
being hedged may not be reduced and may be increased. There is no assurance that the Series
Trust"s hedging strategy will reduce risk or that hedging transactions are either available or
cost effective.

The Manager is not required to use hedging for the Series Trust and may choose not to do so.
Because the Manager may use derivatives to seek to enhance the Series Trust®s returns, its
investments will expose the Series Trust to the risks outlined above to a greater extent than if
the Manager used derivatives solely for hedging purposes. Use of derivatives to seek to enhance
returns is considered speculative.

As of November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, there were no Series Trust derivative assets and
derivative liabilities subject to netting arrangements and similar arrangements.

(E) Counterparty and Broker Risk

The financial institutions and counterparties, including banks and brokerage firms, such as the
Custodian, with which the Manager or its delegate trades or invests for the account of the Series
Trust, may encounter financial difficulties and default on their respective obligations owed in
respect of the Series Trust. Any such default could result in material losses to the Series
Trust. In addition, the Manager may pledge collateral for the account of the Series Trust to the
counterparties in order to secure certain transactions. No collateral was pledged by the Manager
during the years ended November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022.

The Series Trust has not offset any financial assets or financial liabilities in the Statement of
Financial Position.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2023
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

(F) Generated Income and Distributions

There is no guarantee that there will be any Generated Income. Distributions may be paid in whole
or in part out of investment principal attributable to the units or, alternatively, the Generated
Income may be zero. A distribution can in effect result in a return of an investor"s initial
capital or capital gains thereby eroding that capital to the extent the distribution exceeds
available income. In consequence of this possibility, investors seeking capital preservation may
not achieve this given probable deterioration in the value of the Series Trust"s investments
caused by declining asset values and a return of capital to investors by way of distribution. If
the Series Trust is not profitable, the Repurchase Price a unitholder receives back in respect of
a repurchase of units may be less than the unitholder®s initial investment.

The Generated Income partially relies on the receipt of distributions paid by the Selected Fund.
Should the Selected Fund fail to pay any distributions or pay less than anticipated, or due to a
rise in the non-treaty tax rate applicable to the Series Trust, then the Series Trust will gain
correspondingly less than investors may previously have expected. Furthermore, if the interest
rate at which the distributions received accrue falls during the monthly period, this may also
lead to the Generated Income being lower than expected.

(G) No Interest in the Selected Fund
The return on the units depends, amongst other things, on the performance of the Selected Fund.
An investment in units does not give a unitholder a direct interest in the Selected Fund.

(H) Early Termination of the Series Trust
Although the Final Repurchase Day of the Series Trust is scheduled for December 1, 2163, the
Final Repurchase Day will be brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event occur.

5.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation
The Series Trust applies IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement® and utilizes the last traded market

price for its fair valuation inputs for both financial assets and liabilities.

An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.
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The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques. The Series Trust uses a variety of methods and makes
assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each period end date. Valuation
techniques used for non-standardized financial instruments such as options, currency swaps and
other over-the-counter derivatives, include the use of comparable recent arm®s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants making the maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-
specific inputs.

For instruments for which there is no active market, the Series Trust may use internally
developed models, which are usually based on valuation methods and techniques generally
recognized as standard within the industry. Some of the inputs to these models may not be market
observable and are therefore estimated based on assumptions. The output of a model is always an
estimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and valuation
techniques employed may not fully reflect all factors relevant to the positions the Series Trust
holds. Valuations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, to allow for additional factors
including model risk, liquidity risk and counterparty risk.

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects
the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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For the Year Ended November 30, 2023
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The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in
its entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed
against the fair value measurement in its entirety. ITf a fair value measurement uses observable
inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a
Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value
measurement in its entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or
liability.

The determination of what constitutes “ observable” requires significant judgment by the
Administrator, under advisement of the Manager. The Administrator, under advisement of the
Manager, considers observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly
distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent
sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of November 30,
2023 in valuing the Series Trust"s financial assets:

(Unadjusted) Quoted Significant Significant
Prices in Active Other Unobservable

Financial Assets at Fair Markets for Identical Observable Inputs Fair Value at
Value Through Profit or Loss Investments (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) (Level 3) November 30, 2023
Investment in the Selected Fund
Municipal Core Fund USD Class $ -3 194,507,856 $ -3 194,507,856
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss $ - $ 194,507,856 $ -3 194,507,856

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of November 30,
2022 in valuing the Series Trust"s financial assets and liabilities:

(Unadjusted) Quoted Significant Significant
Prices in Active Other Unobservable

Financial Assets at Fair Markets for lIdentical Observable Inputs Fair Value at
Value Through Profit or Loss Investments (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) (Level 3) November 30, 2022
Investment in the Selected Fund
Municipal Core Fund USD Class $ - $ 161,869,074 $ - $ 161,869,074
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss $ - $ 161,869,074 $ -3 161,869,074

During the years ended November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, there were no transfers between
Levels 1, 2 and 3.
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Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued
based on quoted market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by
observable inputs are classified within Level 2. These include over-the-counter derivatives and
debt securities. As Level 2 investments include positions that are not traded in active markets
and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity
and/or non-transferability, which are generally based on available market information.

For purposes of calculating the NAV of the Selected Fund, fixed income securities for which
market quotes are readily available are normally valued on the basis of quotes obtained from
established market makers or pricing services and are classified as Level 2 investments in the
financial statements of the Selected Fund. Forward contracts are valued using observable inputs
which can generally be corroborated by market data and are therefore classified as Level 2
investments in the financial statements of the Selected Fund. As of November 30, 2023 and
November 30, 2022 all financial assets and liabilities were classified as Level 2 investments.

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss

(i) At November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, cash and cash equivalents and all other assets
and liabilities (including receivables for units issued, securities sold, other assets and
payables for securities purchased, fee agent fees, investment management fees,
distribution fees, professional fees, administrator fees, agent member company fees,
custody fees, transfer agent fees, registration fees and printing fees) are deemed short-
term financial assets and liabilities whose carrying amounts approximate fair value
because of their short-term nature. Refer to Note 2 for a description of the valuation
techniques.
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5.4 Investments in unconsolidated structured entities

As of November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, the Selected Fund"s net asset value was JPY
28,757,477,179 (approximately US$ 194,543,886) and JPY 25,823,285,335 (approximately US$
185,086,621), respectively. As of November 30, 2023, the Selected Fund held total investments of
JPY 28,438,094,136 comprising of fixed income securities (corporate bonds, municipal bonds &
notes, asset backed securities and time deposits) of JPY 28,464,284,868 and forward contracts of
JPY (26,190,732). As of November 30, 2022, the Selected Fund held total investments of JPY
25,568,902,731 comprising of fixed income securities (corporate bonds, municipal bonds & notes,
and time deposits) of JPY 25,486,839,018 and forward contracts of JPY 82,063,713. The valuation
of investments in unconsolidated structured entities represents the amount the Series Trust would
expect to receive if it were to liquidated or redeem its investments subject to the underlying
fund®s liquidity or redemption restrictions and costs.

The Selected Fund is financed through equity capital provided by investors, include the Series
Trust. During the years ended November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, the Series Trust did not
provide any other financial support to the Selected Fund and has no intention of providing
financial or other support to this entity.

The rights attached to the Series Trust"s holding in the Selected Fund is similar to those of
other investors. Subscriptions into the Selected Fund are governed by the rights stipulated in
their offering documents. The Series Trust has the ability to liquidate or redeem its investments
periodically in accordance with the provisions of the respective fund agreements. Refer to Note 2
for information regarding the investment objectives and liquidity provisions of the Selected
Fund.

6. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward Contracts

The Investment Manager for the Selected Fund enters into forward contracts for the Selected Fund
by buying forward contracts, under normal circumstances in an amount equal, to the extent
possible, to approximately 100% of the USD exposure of the Net Asset Value (excluding unrealized
currency gain or losses).

The Investment Manager enters into forward contracts for the Series Trust by buying forward
contracts.

As of November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, there were no open forward contracts in the Series
Trust.
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7. NET LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

November 30, 2023 November 30, 2022

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss consist of the following:

Net realized (loss) on investments in the Selected Fund $ (142,983) $ (3,923,731)
Net realized (loss) on investments in forward contracts - (165)
Total net realized (loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss $ (142,983) $ (3,923,896)

Movement in net unrealized (depreciation) on investments in the

Selected Fund $ (2,544,607) $ (39,950,000)
Total net change in unrealized (depreciation) on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss $ (2,544,607) $ (39,950,000)

8. FEES, EXPENSES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

8.1 Fees and Expenses

(A) Administrator Fees

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.06% on the first US$500 million of the net assets,
0.05% on the next US$500 million of the net assets and 0.04% on the net assets over US$1 billion,
subject to a monthly minimum fee of $3,750. The fees earned by the Administrator during the years
ended November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, and outstanding fees payable to the Administrator
as of November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022 have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(B) Custody Fees

The Custodian receives asset based and transactional charges dependent on market demographics of
the assets. The fees earned by the Custodian during the years ended November 30, 2023 and
November 30, 2022, and outstanding fees payable to the Custodian as of November 30, 2023 and
November 30, 2022 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement
of Financial Position, respectively.
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(C) Distribution Fees

The Distributor receives an annual fee of 0.25% of the Net Asset Value payable monthly in
arrears.

The Distribution Fees are payable by the Administrator, on behalf of the Manager, out of the
assets of the Series Trust. The fees earned by the Distributor during the years ended November
30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, and outstanding fees payable to the Distributor as of November
30, 2023 and November 30, 2022 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(D) Transfer Agent Fees

The Transfer Agent receives an annual fee of 0.01% of the Net Asset Value and a $10 fee per
transaction out of the assets of the Series Trust. The fees earned by the Transfer Agent during
the years ended November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, and outstanding fees payable to the
Transfer Agent as of November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022 have been disclosed in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(E) Professional Fees

Professional fees include legal and audit fees. The fees paid during the years ended November 30,
2023 and November 30, 2022, and outstanding fees payable as of November 30, 2023 and November 30,
2022, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial
Position, respectively.

8.2 Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.
The Trustee, Fee Agent, Manager and Agent Member Company are all related parties to the Series
Trust.

There were no other transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of
business.

(A) Trustee Fees

The Trustee is entitled to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee a fixed annual fee of $10,000
payable annually in advance. The fees earned by the Trustee during the years ended November 30,
2023 and November 30, 2022, and outstanding fees payable to the Trustee as of November 30, 2023
and November 30, 2022 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the
Statement of Financial Position, respectively, as a part of Fee Agent fees.
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(B) Investment Management Fees

The Investment Manager receives an annual fee of 0.20% of the Net Asset Value payable quarterly
in arrears.

The fees earned by the Investment Manager during the years ended November 30, 2023 and November
30, 2022, and outstanding fees payable to the Investment Manager as of November 30, 2023 and
November 30, 2022 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement
of Financial Position, respectively.

The Investment Manager of the Selected Fund receives a fee at the rate of 0.32% per annum, paid
monthly in arrears out of the assets of the Selected Fund based on the average Net Asset Value in
the preceding month.

(C) Fee Agent Fees

The Fee Agent receives an annual fee of 0.12% of Net Assets Value (the "Operational Costs Fees'™)
and 0.57% of Net Assets Value (the "Sales Administrative Fees™), accrued on and calculated as at
each valuation day. The Operational Costs Fees are paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the
Trustee out of the assets of the Series Trust.

The fees earned by the Fee Agent during years ended November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, and
outstanding fees payable to the Fee Agent as of November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022 have been
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position,
respectively.

The Fee Agent is responsible for paying certain ongoing and operational costs and expenses of the
Series Trust, including manager fees and the following costs and expenses, which are, in
reasonable judgement of the Fee Agent, determined as ordinary costs and expenses (the "Ordinary
Costs™):

(i) auditing costs that are not included in the audit fees and expenses;

(i1) annual fees payable in respect of the Series Trust or the Trust to government bodies and
agencies; and

(iii)insurance costs (if any).
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For the avoidance of doubt, the Fee Agent is not responsible for the payment of the sales
administrative fees, investment manager fees, audit fees, formation expenses, distribution fees,
administration fees, custody fees, any broker fees relating to security transactions, any costs
relating to the Offering Memorandum and Appendix 25 and other similar offering documents and the
costs relating to the preparation, printing, translation and delivery of such documents and any
taxes relating to the purchase or disposal of securities, legal or compensation costs, licensing
and any other extraordinary costs and expenses that would not usually occur.

To the extent that the Operational Costs Fee is not sufficient to cover the Ordinary Costs, the
Fee Agent is liable for any outstanding amounts. Any amounts remaining following payment of the
Ordinary Costs shall be retained by the Fee Agent as its remuneration for acting as fee agent in
respect of the Series Trust.

The Operational Costs Fees and the Sales Administrative Fees accrue daily on an actual / 365 day
count fraction basis and are payable quarterly in arrears in the amount accrued, from and
excluding, for the first accrual period only, the initial closing day, and for all other accrual
periods, the last day of each calendar quarter.

(D) Manager Fees
The Manager is entitled to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee, a management fee of $5,000
per annum payable monthly in arrears, as a part of Fee Agent fees.

(E) Agent Member Company Fees

The Agent Member Company is entitled to receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value
payable quarterly in arrears. The Agent Member Company Fees are paid by the Administrator, on
behalf of the Manager out of the assets of the Series Trust. The fees earned by the Agent Member
Company during the years ended November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022 and outstanding fees
payable to the Agent Member Company as of November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022 have been
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position,
respectively.

9. BORROWING AND LEVERAGE POLICY
The Series Trust may borrow up to 10% of its Net Asset Value if required to facilitate short term

cash flows. During the years ended November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, the Series Trust did
not incur any borrowings.
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10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Following a Special resolution dated February 1, 2024, the Manager changed its name and is now
incorporated under the name of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited.

On February 28, 2024, the Trustee resolved to change the name of the Trust from Credit Suisse
Universal Trust (Cayman) 111 to UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) Il1l. The Master Trust Deed was
revised through a Deed of Amendment on March 1, 2024.

The Trustee has evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through April 30, 2024, the date
on which these financial statements were available to be issued. Effective December 1, 2023
through April 30, 2024, there were subscriptions of $9,641,192 and repurchases of $7,760,005.
During the same period, there were distributions of $1,114,083. There are no other subsequent
events to report as relates to the Series Trust.
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USD USD
106,751 16,163 99,787 15,109
4 (14,396) (2,180) (1,541) (233)
92,355 13,983 98,246 14,875
4,999 757 10,107 1,530
4,999 757 10,107 1,530
112,595 17,048 5,998 908
112,595 17,048 5,998 908
4 14,396 2,180 1,541 233
224,345 33,968 115,892 17,547
224,345 33,968 115,892 17,547
9 1,759,688 266,434 1,643,796 248,887
1,984,033 300,402 1,759,688 266,434
9 1,984,033 300,402 1,759,688 266,434

1,984,033 300,402 1,759,688 266,434
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Statement of Income for the year endad 31 Decembear 2022

uso Mohcts 2022 021
iy R T B S T R e 14396 1501
- of which Interest ncome fram instrumenis at
amarised cost 14,396 1,541
Total interest income 4 14,356 1,541
Senvice fesincome B 05000 210,000
Olher ravanues 58 4
Tatal revenues 218,454 211,545
General, adminitralive and other operstng espenses B (112703 {111,768
Operating profit before allowance and taxation 106,751 99,787
Profit before tax 106,751 99,787
‘ncome tax expense T TTTTTTTTIITTTITITT
Profit after tax 106,751 49,787

The accompanying neles lorm an integral per of these financs! slaterments,
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Mgragaenent (Cayenan)
Fnancad siatemecds for the year gnged 31 Decernber 20577

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2022

= Firercs 2022 2021
Agsets
Cash and due from barks & 1,884,033 1,759,688
Other assets 10 205,864 210,863
Total assets 2,189,897 1,970,551
Liabilities
Other Eabities 10 336,526 223,931
Total liabilities 336,526 223,931
Shareholders” equity |
Share capital 11 735,000 735,000
Retained eamings _ 1118371 1,011,620
Total shareholders’ equity 1,853,371 1,746,620
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 2,189,857 1,870,551
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 15 June 2023

]

]

1 Director

i

]

neé
Hicobos HP"‘"'
pirecte? ited
wonogeme™! covmor) 7
credit Suisse

The accomganying notes form an integral pant of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2022

Sharz capial Retained Total

uso eamings
2022

‘Balance at 1 Janwary 735000 1,011,820 1,746,620
Frofit fo the year . - {0875t 10aTst
Balance at 31 Decembar 735,000 1,118,237 1,853,371
20

Balenceattlanvary 735000 911,833 1,645,833
Croftiieipy e T e Y Qg G787

Balance at 31 December 725,000 1,011,820 1,748,820

The accompanying netes form an integral part of these finsncial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2022

uen hhency 2022 2021
Cash flows from cperaling activities

Frofit betore tax for the pericd - 106,751 4o, 787
Adjusimenis to reconcile net profit to net cash

generaled from operating activities

Non-cash items included m net profit before tax

and olher adjustmenis:

Irterestincoms ! ! (14,306 (1541)
Cash generated from operating activides before

changes in operaling assets and liabilitles 92,355 98,246
Nel decrease in operaling assels:

Otherasses T agmw 10,107
Net decrease in operating assets 4,933 10,107
Net increase in operaling liabilities:

Other labiltles O TTTTTTTTTT CL- B,008
Net increase in operating liabilities: . n2ees 5,938
Inberest moome reosved 4 14,396 1,541
Met cash generated from operating activity 224,345 116,553
Net increase in cash and cazh equivalents 224,345 115,892
Cash and cash equivalents 21 the beginning of year 8 1,758,688 1,543,798
Cash and cash equivalents al the end of year 1,984,033 1,759,628
Cash and dug frerm banks O 1,884,033 1,755,558
Cash and cash equivalents al the end of year 1,984,033 1,759,688

The accompanying nales form an Irtegral part of these financial stalements.
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Motes to the financial statements
1. Principal activitios

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) LimBed (he “Company”) i incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limeled liskitty. The Company's princisal actiities are the creation of tusts and the admisistration
and menagement of assets n tusts. The Company's registered office s oo Maples Corporale
Sarvices Limited, RO, Bax 308 , Ugland House, Grand Cagman Y 1-1104, Cayman Islands.

2. Significant Accounting Palicies
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial stetements have been prepared In sccordance with el epplcable Intemalional
Francig] Reporfing Senderds (MIFRSs"), which coleclive ferm inchdas al applicabla indiwidual
Iviemational Firancial Reporfing Standards, Infernalional Accountng Slendards (14327 and
Irfepralations ssued by Intemationa! Accounling Standards Seard (MIASET). A summary of the
gigrificant accourding poficies adopted by tre Company is set ouf beliow,

(b} Basis of preparation of the financial stalements
The measwement basis used in the preparation of Ine inancial slelerments is the historcal cost basis.

Tre preparation of financial statemenis in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgemante, estimates and acsumptions that affact the application of peicies and reportad ameunts
of assels, Hablities, Income and expenses. The estimates and esscciaied assunptions are based on
hislorical experience and warous other factors that are belioved 4o be reascnable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements atout carmying values of
assels and liabdities (hat are not readly assasent from other scurces. Actuad resulls may ditfer from
thase eslimales

The esiimates and underlying assumglions are revewed on an ongeing bests. Revsions (o sccounting
estimates ans recognised in the period in which {he estimale Is revised i the revision affects only that
perod, or n the percd of the ravigion znd fulure pariods | the revsion affects both current and fuiure
periods.

Going Concern

On 1% March 2023, Credt Susse Group AG and UES Group AG anterad into an agresrnent and
plan of manger (e rmascer), whizh was complated en 12 June 2093, From 12 June 2093, the
Comparry s a consolidated subskdiary of UBS Group MG, and as such the future operations and
{inancial parformance of the Company may be impacted as a result of the merger and tha Imeact iz
yal to ke determined. This matier indicates thal a material wncertainly exdsts that may casl significant
doubt on the Cempany's abilly 1o continue as 2 going concem. The Directors have censiderad the
Tulbure Squikty and cash flows of the Compary in the coming twetve months from 31 December 2002
(“Ihe nexd twelve months™) and concluded that the Company is expecied to have suffident woring
cepilal to meet is fnandal obfigalions as and when thay faf due o confinue operating the Company
during the: next twebe menths. Accoedingly, the Direclors consider thal i is appropriaie to still prepane
the 2082 financisl stalemenls on & going concam hasis,
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2, Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
() Cash and cash egquivalents

Cagh and due from banks comprise cash at bank &nd on hand with banks, and shor-tenn, highly
liguid iwestments thal ame reedly comertide into known amounts of cash and which are subject lo an
inzgnificant risk of changes in value, having been within 1hree months of maturity st scquisiten,

{d) Forelgn currency

The Company's lunctional and presenlalion cumency is Uniled States Dollars (MUSDTY. Foreign
currency lrersactions during the year ane tansiated info USD at the forg'gn axchange mes nling al
the Irensaclon dates. Monetary essels and keblibes denominaled in foreign curencies are ranslaled

inlo WSO &l the foreign exchange rales wing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and
kosses are recognised in The profil or loss,

Mon-manatary aeeate and llabiltiss that s mezsurad in Sarms of histedeal coet ina forelgn cumency
are translated inty USD usng the forisn ecchange rates riling at the transaciion dates. Moa-
menatany asceie and labiities cenominated In foreign cumencias that are slalsd Al falr value are
fransiated wsng e foreign sxchange rakes nuling at the detes the fair vaive was delermined. Foogign
cummency diferences adsing on reframsiatien are recogrisad in profd or oes.

(e} Other assels

Ofher assets are Iniiafdly recognised at fair value and thereafler slaled at amorbised cost lkess
Expected Cradit Laes [ECL") (rafer to Note HNal), ewcepl whars the recekmables are inbanast-free
oars mads o related parties without any fiued repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
Frmatenal. In such cases, the recebables are stabed at oot less impaisment for Bad and doubtha
debls,

{f) Pravisions and contingent liabililies

Provisicns. are recognlsed for labilfifzs of uncertain fiming or amount when the Company has 2 legal
or constructive obligation arsing as a result of a past event, i s probable that an cutfiow of eocnomic
benefits will be required 1o seilke lhe chigation and a refiable estmale cash be made, Whers the ime
value of money is material, provisions ase skaled at the presend value of the expendiiure expecled to
seltle the obiigation.

Whiara it ig not probabls hat an cultflow of aconomic Banafils wil ba reguired, o the amourt cannat
be setinated reliably, the obigation is disciased as a conlingent liabiky, unlass ine probability of
outlow of aconomic benefits s remote. Poasble ebligations, whazs existenca wil anky be confirmed
by the cecumence of non-occumence of ana or more future events are also disclosed as comingent
llaziHies urbess the prebabiily of outfiow of economic berefis i remzds.

(g} ImpaiFment

The carying amount of the Company's assets is revieved at the end of each raperdting peded to
delarming whather thars is asy ohisctive svidance of impalmenl. If asy such objactve evidance
edigis, the asset's receverabla amount is estmaled at the end of each reporing pedoed. An
mpairment less s recognised whenever the camying amount of an assel excesds s recovermbls
arnmount, Impairrtent osses ame recagred in e oroft o loss,

Unger IFRS £, he impairmen! requiraments apply primarily fo fnancial assels measuned al amorised
eest, The rmpatvmest requirarrents are besed on a fonward-inoking sepectad oredit loss model by
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2 Significant Accounting Policies {(conlinued)
(g} Impairment (continued)

incorporating reasonable and sucpodable fomecasts of fulure econcmic condions awailible at e
reparting date. This requinres censiderable judgement ever how changes In economic faclors effect
ECL=, which is catermited on a probabiity-waishted basls.

(h} Revenue recognition

Provided that it is probable ihal the sconomiz benefts will flow to tre Company and the revenue and
costs, if appicathe, can be rmeagued relably, senice fes icome < recognized in profit o loss when
the invesimant managemert sarice iz provided,

(i} Expenses
All expanses xre recognised i prolil and |oe on an accnal besls.
() Related parties

For the puposes of thess financial statements, a parly is eonsidered fo be related to the Company i
(8) A pemen, or a clese miember of thal person’s lamily, & miated fo the Company | that person
) has contral or joinl control over the Company;
() b signilicant influercs over the Company; or
(it} s a member of tha key managament personnel of the Company or the Company’s
et

(b}  An enthy is related 40 the Company if any of the foliowng condilions apphes:

i The enlity and the Company are membens of the same group (which means that sach
parent, subsidiary and feliow subslary is relaled Io the othes],

{i}  Cne entily is an associale or joint venture of the other enlify jor a0 associate or joint
venture of & membear of 8 group of which 1he offer entity i a mamber),

(i} Bolh enlifies ane jont ventures of the same thid parly,

{r}  Ore enlily i & joirt vendure of a third party and the other entify (s an gszaciate of the
third !

) mmuamwmm&pmMmammmmmﬁmw
Corrmpany ar an entily related to the Company.,

) The ertdy s controlied or joinly controbed by & person identitied in (a).

{sily A pereon identfied In (2} has significant influsnce over the entily o s a member of the
key maragament personned of the entity (or of 2 parent of the entity].

Close members of the famiy of & person ae those family members who may be espected fo
nfluence, er be influenced by, thal person in thelr daalings with the entity,

(k} Standards and Interpretations effective in the current pericd

The Comparty has not adopled any new slandards or amendments having material imoact on the
financial pasition, resull of operafions or cash lows i the curent year,
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3. Changes in Accounting Policies

Tha LASE has ssued & rurmbes of amendnenls 1o IFRSs that are ficst affeclive for the cumnt
accourling period of the Company, Tre adoplion of thess amendmants had no materia? impact to the
Cornpany's linancg! posstion, resul of operalions or cash flows.

The Cormpany has not applled any now standard or imerpredation thal is not vet effective Tor the
cument accounting perdod (Mote 15).

4. Total Interest Income

UsD 2022 2021
Total interesl income

Intarest income on cashand due fombanks " 14364 1841
Total Interest income R T T T T

Al the above intevest income e instuments are el amarised cosl.
5. Service Fee Income

The pincipal acthviies of the Company ane the creation of trusts and the adminstration and
menagement of assets i trusts,

Revenuve represends nvesimen! management fee income eamed from lelow subsidiany as folows:

UsSD 2022 2021
o kot o R
Senice foe income <00,0C0 218,000
Total service fee income 205,000 210,000

6. General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

Usp 2022 2021
General administrative and other cperating expenses
R - S )
Augttor remunesation S48 B
Daeclos temwnemabon __ ________ ____(106.175) (106,485
Total general administrative and other cparating expansas (112,703) (111, 768)

Al of the above expencitures are payeble i the Comgany's immediate hoiding companty and the
wnrnediate holging company seties such expendiures an behalf of the Compary.

7. Taxation
Thara ara nc taxes on income or gaing in fhe Cayman !slande and tha Comgany has recefred an
undertaking from the Gowemas in Coundl of the Cayman |slands sxempting it from af lozal incoms,

profits and captal taves until 10 Octeber 0Ee, Accordingly, no grovichon for income taxes is includad
infhese fnancal statemants.

n
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8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Sponscrad inconsobdziad structied enifes

The Company conskiers heet the sponsor of 2 stuctured entity when cither i3 name azpears n the
name of the stroctured entity or in products issued by 0 or there is a general axpactation from the
market thal the Company = aesecipted with the struciured ertity or the Company was imolved in the
cesign or get up of the structured enlity and hes & foam of Invoivament with the structured enfity.

The balow unoonsolidated struciured entifies are spensored by the Cempany where a fized annesl
managamert fea of USD 5,000 (2327 USD 5,000 = mceved but no inlemst s ha'd by the
Company as at 31 Decamber 2022:

Global Select Camy Siratagy Fund

e Equly Premium StaleqyFund _____ ...

P-'lim;m} ¢ C8 Canadian EE;-I'-!jI' Income Fund (For Qualified Institutions] Imestons Only)

Ghoba! ZEIT Tighe Prerrium Fund (For Qualfied Insitutional Ivestors Oni) .
LS High Div Equity Premium Fund (Far Quaified Institulional Investors Onld
U5 Small Cap Equity Premaumm Fund (Fer QuaBfied Insttutioral Irvestors Oniby)

__________________________________________________________

Meesay Japan Equily Active Fund (For Cumlified Institrions] mvesters Only)

P - P o o W A S W R

“ANIF Australa RET Fund (For Qualiied instiuiicnal investos O~~~ """ """

J-REIT and Faal Esfate Eouby Fund (For Qualiiied instiotional invastors Ory]

Gnmh'} ‘Amefcan High Dividend Equlty Quatiro Income Furd (For Qualfied Instiutional investors

US RET Trple Engine Plus Furd (For Gualled Instiutonal Imestos Onlyh
UE Municgal Sond Fund

----------------------------------------------------------

TokloMarine CAT SordPund
Global High Divicend Equity Premium Fund (For Qualfied estititioral Investors Onb)
Melleraboleeton. . oo e e o
BSMDGltalAdadage ...
PMCO Shod Teem Income Strateqvfund
FMCO Short Twarn Sirak

------------------------------------------------------------

Foreign Denominated Man AHL Srrar Leverags Strateqy Fund

12
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8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities (continued)

SBI Pectet Azia Hi-Tech Venture Fund

ALD Shot Term Bond Fygrd
Insight Mha . e e e e e e
LS Dynarric Growih Fund

Fremiun Cany Stealegy Fund . e

Tha Corpury has ot provided financial or other supsan 10 cnsonscidates stnactured antities that it
W nat contractualky recuires 1o provide,

The Company dees nol cumenlly heve fhe infention to provide Trancal o other auppod o
unconsolideled structured entilies that i is nol contrachually requined lo orovids.

9. Cash and Due from Banks

Cash and cash aguivitisnis compniss:

usp 2022 2021
Cash and due from banks

Cash and due from banks 1684033 1,759,688
Total cash and due from banks 1,984,033 1,765,688
10. Other Assets and Other Liabilities

usp 022 201
Other assets

Intenest and loes recebmble D05, 864 M0L53
Total other assats 205,864 210,863
T 2021
Other liabiities

Intarest and fnas payvabls 336,608 063,931
Total othar abilities 336,526 22350

13
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11. Share Cepital
(a) Authorised and issued share capital
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2022 2021 _
Mo, of usD Neo. of usp
shares shares

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of USD 1 each

1,000,000 1,000,000 1000000 1,000,000

Issuad and fully paid wp:

Ordnary gharas

TIE000 735,000 735000 76,000

The hokders of crdinery shares are entdiad to recaive dhidencs as deciared from dme 1o time and are
anfilad o one vole per chara af general meetings of the Compasy. Al ordingry shanes mnk equaky

wilh regard to the Company’s residual assets.

(b} Capital management

The Company's prirary ebjectives wien managing capital 2m to safaguard the Company's ablity to
confinue as a going conoern go that [t can cantinue to provide returns 1o sharshaldars, by pridng
sandces commengurately with the leval of riek and By secuing access 4o financs at 2 reascrable
cost. Az the Company is parl of a brger group, the Company's sounces of addiional capital and
poicies for distibution of excess capltal may also be affecied by (e group's capilal managemant
objectves. The Company defines "capital® 25 nduding of companents of squity,

The Company's capilal slruchore & regulardy reviewad Bnd managed wilh due regard fo the capital
managemen] praclioes of the growe o which the Company telongs. Adjustments are mada to he
capifal stasture in lighl of changes in sconeric condlions affecting the Company or the group, 1o
{he extent that thess do not confiict with the directors” fiduciany duties tewards the Company,

The Company was ndl subject to extemally imposed capital requinsments in the current perniod.
12. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure 1o credi, iquidiy, interest mle and foreign cumency rsks arises in the nomal course of ihe
Company's business, Thess risks ame manzged by fhe Company's financlal managemerd policies and

praciices descibed below.
() Cracit risk

Thee Comgany's cradil nisk & primarily attibutabls o amounls due from group comparies and cash at
bank, Credi risk is delined as risk that one parly to a financial instrument will cause a fnancial loss to
another gty by falng 1o dischame an obigation. Management moulady monitars s sk sposus 1o
enswe thal iis credit rigk s kepl o 2 minimal level. The madimum exposure fo credit ek is
repragantad by the camying amount of each financial asgel in the stabement of financial position afher

deducting any impaiment alowancs.

e
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12. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (continued)
(B Ligeddity risk

The Company's policy is to regulady monfor its liguidiy requiremenls lo salisly ils contractual and
neasenably foreseeabls obligations as they (20 due.

A 37 Decamber 2022 and 2021, all of 1he Companys financial liasilias, which inciuces al cradiors
and accrals, are on demand or undzted and are expecied o be sotlled totween three o twelee
months,

{c) lnterast rate risk

The Company [= sxpesed %o ferast rala sk only 1o tha extent thal i eams bank intarest cn cagh
and depostts. At 31 Decambar 2022 and 2021, a changs In interest ratss would have no direct
malardal effect on the caryng value of the recognised aseats or liabfities of the Company.

&) Foredgn currancy Hsk

The Cormpany (s esposed (o foreign cumency risk primady throsgh certain brznsachons which ghw rise
to payabdes thal are dancmirated in Hong Keng dollars ("HKIDL

Ag the HKD is pegaed to the US0, the Company considers that the risk of movements in exchange
rates bebwesn USD and HKD to b2 insigndicant.

(8 Fair vales

Tha camying amounis of the Cempany’s financial instruments caried af cost or amonised cast are not
mibertally differert from thelr fair value as at 31 December 2052 and 2041,

13. Material Related Party Transactions

In addition to ke fansaclons and balances disclosed sbsrehers in the firancial stalements, the
Compary entersd inte the folowing maleal refated pary brarsaciions.

(a) Related party balance sheet transactions

31 Decambar 2022 31 Decambar 2021
Parant Fallow Total Parent Fallow Tatad
Group Group
usD Companies Companies
Assais
Cilhar assuls — DOG.B64 005 AR — ™M0BE3 FEEC
Tolal assels - 205,864 205,884 e 210,883 210,863
Liabilitias and
Egquity
OtherfabMles 394028 - 3%e dmEn T s
Share capilsl 35,000 - T35, 000 735,000 - 745,000
Tedal liabiFtas and
sharehalders”
e Lily 1.071.526 = 1,071,526 958,531 = 958,831
15
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13.  Material Related Party Transactions (continued)

(b)) Related party revenues and expenses

51 December 2002 ____ 31D 1
Parant Falloer Total Parent lggml Total
Group up
UsD Companies Companies
Revenues
Serfep feancome - DOBODO  ROROO0 - 210,000 210,000
Total revanuas - 205,000 205,000 = 210,000 20 0,000 :

() Remuneration of key management personne|

Remunenstion of kay managament parsonnal (USD) 2022 2021
“Shant-term anployes sanatiz 105,178 108,458
Tedal Rermuneration of Koy manogement personnel 106,175 106,485

14. Parent and Ultimate Holding Company

At 31 Decsmber 2022, the immediale parent of the Conpary is Credit Suissa (Hong Kong) Limited,
wiich i incorporaled in Hong Kong wnd the ulbmale conlroling pary of the Compary & Credi
Suisse Group AG, which i incorperalied in Swilsesland, Credt Suisse Group AG produces firancial
sletements avalebie lor public uss.

From 12 June 2023, the ulimate controling party of the Company 1s UBS Group AG, which is
incorporated In Swizadand upon completon of ine merger with Crecit Suisse Group AS (he
rmergerT mentioned in Mabe b

15. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations Issued
but not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2022

Certain new accounting slandards, amendmenis to eccounting standards and interpretalions ave
been pubdshed that are nod mandatory for 31 December 2022 reporing pededs and have nod been
enly adopled by the Company, These standands, amandments or interpretations ara not axpected to
have a maleds! impacl on the enlily in the cumen? or fulure reporling pericds and on foresmeatis
fubure transactions,

16. Subsequent Events

As el out m Nobe by, on 19 March S025, Credit Suisse Group AG and UBS Group A5 entered
irto an agreernent and plan of menger, which was completed on 12 June 2023, Frem 12 June 2093,
the Company ks a consolicaled subsidiary of UBS Group AG, and as such the fulure operations and
financial performance of the Company may be impacted as a rasulf of the menger and the impast is
yet to ba delermined.

17.  Approval of Financial Statements

The fingncad slelements wene epproved for issue by the board of directors of tha Company on 15
June 2023,

16
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KPMG LLP

P.0. Box 493

SIX Cricket Square Grand
Cayman KY1-1106 Cayman
Islands

Tel +1 345 949 4800

Fax +1 345 949 7164

Web www . kpmg . com/ky

Independent Auditors® Report to the Trustee
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of US Municipal Bond Fund (the "Series Trust™), a series trust
of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111 (formerly, Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111) (the
"Trust'), which comprise the statement of financial position as at November 30, 2023, the statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, inall material respects, the
financial position of the Series Trust as at November 30, 2023, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (*'IFRS Accounting Standards™).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("'ISAs™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the "Auditors " Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in
accordance, with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (*'IESBA Code™) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust"s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series
Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust®s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditors® Report to the Trustee (continued)
Auditors* Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Series Trust"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern. Ifwe
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors” report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors"
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events ina
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

April 30, 2024
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the “Company”), which are set out on pages 4 to 16,
comprise;

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022;

the statement of income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December
2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“1FRSS").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAS’). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.
Independence
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants

(including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

To the Board of Directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw your attention to Note 2(b) to the financial statements, which describes the merger on 12 June 2023 (the “merger”)
between Credit Suisse Group AG (the ultimate parent of the Company before the merger) and UBS Group AG (the ultimate
parent of the Company after the merger), which may have an impact on the Company's future operations and financial
performance and the impact is yet to be determined. This matter indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financia Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic aternative but to do so.

Auditor’' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with |SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

To the Board of Directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor
's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 15 June 2023
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